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1 MAYOR’S REPORT 

I am pleased to present to you the Town of Mosman Park’s Annual Report for 2016-2017.  

Over the course of the financial year, we have continued our emphasis on strong financial 

management, generating cost savings and finding efficiencies while maintaining Town 

assets and facilities.  Our bush spaces have continued to thrive through the hard work of 

Town staff and volunteers, while our parks, reserves and streetscapes are maintained to 

the high standard that our residents expect.  

Important road renewal works were completed in Owston and Lochee Streets and 

Healing Lane, with significant repairs done to the boardwalk in Garungup Park. Our Sports 

and Recreation Plan was finalised following community consultation, and in the current 

year we will continue to deliver on those priorities; as well as our collaboration with the 

City of Fremantle to help preserve our Indian Ocean beachfront, and examining options 

for an ocean pool in Mosman Park. The finalisation of Local Planning Scheme #3 will 

provide certainty for our Town’s development future. Extensive community consultation 

is already underway on development proposals for Mosman Bay, and Rocky Bay, and a 

revitalisation program for the Town Centre precinct.  Our new Food Truck Policy is 

delivering exciting new casual dining opportunities in our Town’s stunning locations, 

which locals are enjoying in great numbers.   

As the Mayor of Mosman Park, elected in October 2017, I will be continuing to work on 

the priorities listed above, and many more, that would not have been possible without 

the leadership and support of Ron Norris, our former Mayor; former Councillor Ian Flack, 

who served for many years including as Deputy Mayor, and former Councillor Wesley 

Davies.  On behalf of the community, I thank them for their many years of service to 

Mosman Park and pledge to continue the important work of serving our community, with 

renewed energy and focus on addressing the challenges ahead. 

I wish to thank the team, Councillors past and present, and staff for their efforts during 

2016/2017, and I invite you to peruse our achievements in this Annual Report and 

continue to engage with us as we live together in harmony in our beautiful Town, 

Between River and Sea. 

 

 

 

Brett Pollock 

Mayor  
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2 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

It has been a highly productive 12 months for the Town of Mosman Park. We have 

sharpened our focus on financial management, which is in keeping with the priorities of 

our elected Councillors and community sentiment.  Good work has begun finding 

efficiencies and savings, whilst maintaining the quality services that our community 

expects.  During 2015-2016, we have consolidated the dedicated team that works on 

your behalf, including the appointment of two new Executive Managers for Corporate 

Services and for Regulatory and Planning Services respectively.  These two key 

appointments, followed by a review of our staffing profile, have enabled us to expand our 

capacity in key areas. 

During the financial year, we developed a new vision for Monument Hill/Buckland Hill, as 

well as a Sports and Recreation Master Plan; which, in turn, informs the future of Nash 

Field and our Skate Park to name a few, so that we continue to provide first-rate leisure 

and fitness opportunities for residents of all ages and abilities.  

Important work is underway that will invigorate the future of our Town’s built 

infrastructure, as Local Planning Scheme #3 opens up Mosman Park to exciting residential 

and commercial development options that capitalise on the high land values in the area, 

and will provide for greater density and more employment opportunities.  As a result, 

there are already exciting prospects for Mosman Bay, Rocky Bay and our Town Centre in 

the mix, with more to come.   

The real value in our community resides in its people, and we continue to support our 

residents by providing a range of support services and events, and recognising the 

hundreds of volunteers and the noble work they do that is at our community’s heart.   

I thank our elected members and staff for their dedication and commitment, and the 

community for their rich contribution, which together makes Mosman Park the perfect 

place to live, work, study and play, Between River and Sea. 

 

 

 

Mark Goodlet 

Chief Executive Officer 
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3 ELECTED MEMBERS 

3.1 Position titles current as at 30 June 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor Ron Norris 

 

 

 

 

 

Cr Ian Flack Cr Zenda Johnson Cr Andrew Maurice 

 

 

 

 

 

Cr Jenna Ledgerwood Cr Brett Pollock Cr Wesley Davies 
Deputy Mayor 
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3.2 Position titles current following the October 2017 Local Government 

Elections 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor Brett Pollock 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cr Zenda Johnson  Cr Andrew Maurice Cr Paul Shaw 
Deputy Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

Cr Jenna Ledgerwood Cr Georgie Carey 
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4 ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

The table below shows the attendance of Councillors from July 2016 to June 2017. 

Position titles current as at 30 June 2017. 

 Ordinary 
Council 
Meeting 

Special 
Council 
Meeting 

Agenda 
Forum 

Audit 
Committee 

Meeting 

Corporate 
& Technical 

Services 
Committee 

Meeting 

Regulatory 
Services 

Committee 
Meeting 

No. of Meetings 
Held 

11 4 5 5 6 5 

Councillors       

Mayor Norris 8 3 5 D2 D3 D3 

Cr Ledgerwood 11 4 4 NM 6 D1 

Cr Flack 10 3 4 D1 D2 5 

Cr Davies 10 4 3 5 6 D2 

Cr Johnson 11 4 5 NM 6 5 

Cr Pollock 10 4 5 5 6 5 

Cr Maurice 11 4 5 5 D1 5 

 

D1 to D3 Deputy in order of number 

NM Not a member of the committee 
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5 STRATEGIC COMMUNITY PLAN – 2016 - 2023 

The Town of Mosman Park’s Strategic Community Plan sets out the plan for the future of 

the district, given the opportunities and challenges we face. In 2016, in compliance with 

legislative requirements, the Town reviewed its Strategic Community Plan, and through a 

process of community consultation, the following minor revisions were made to our Key 

Strategic Objectives: 

 

REVISED STRATEGIC COMMUNITY PLAN 
2016-2023 

STRATEGIC COMMUNITY PLAN  
2013-2023 

ENHANCING OUR TOWN 

1. Create a multi-faceted Town to cater for 
wide community interests 

1. Creating a multi-faceted Town Centre at 
the Camelot Precinct to cater for wide 
community interest 

2. Maintain and develop Town infrastructure 
for the benefit of our community 

2. Maintain and develop Town infrastructure 
for the benefit of our community 

3. Support businesses and commercial 
ventures, including schools, in a proactive 
way 

3. Support the enhancement of our business 
centres 

4. Promote, protect and enhance the Town’s 
natural environment 

4. Promote, protect and enhance the Town’s 
natural environment 

5. Encourage a built environment which is 
consistent with the amenity of the area 

5. Encourage sustainable structures 

WORKING TOGETHER 

6. Engage effectively to encourage 
community members to participate in the 
Town’s future 

6. Effective engagement to encourage 
community members to participate in the 
Town’s future 

7. Provide an environment that enables 
people to connect and build partnerships 

7. Foster effective partnerships as a way of 
meeting community needs 

DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE SERVICES 

8. Deploy a sustainable financial strategy to 
ensure resources are available for the work 
required 

8. Deploy a sustainable financial strategy to 
ensure resources are available for the work 
required in our town 

9. Provide citizen focused services to the 
community including best practice customer 
service and communication 

9. Provide citizen-focused services to the 
community within available resources 

10. Attract, support, develop and retain an 
effective and efficient workforce that works 
to best meet the needs of the community 

10. Attract, support, develop and retain an 
effective and efficient workforce 
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6 IMPLEMENTING OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

The Town’s Strategic Community Plan 2013-2023 (updated 2016) and the Corporate Business Plan 2013-2017 provide the detailed 

strategies and actions related to the Town’s ten strategic objectives.  The major initaitives and actions reported on below were those 

identified to be adressed in the 2016/2017 financial year through consultation with the Council leading up to the budget process.  

6.1 Enhancing Our Town 

Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

1. Create a multi-faceted town centre to cater for wide community interest - These places will cater for a range of community, business and social 
activities. These should be developed within the timeframe of this plan. 

1.1 Create a vibrant and 
energised built environment 
that reflects the Town’s 
local heritage and identity. 

Develop a 10 year overarching Camelot 
Precinct Master Plan to guide its future 
development and attributes, including:  

 Commercial and retail activities; 

 Vibrant culture and events; 

 Improved disability access; 

 Digital communications; 

 Effective transport modes; 

 Crime Prevention; and 

 Destination Location campaign. 

This action has been set aside by Council, as it is not in the updated 
Strategic Community Plan 2016-2023. 

 

Work continued on the new Local Planning Scheme #3, as a 
foundation document for the Town’s built environment. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

1.2 The Town’s planning 
framework and policies are 
aligned, current and easy to 
understand. 

Complete the review of the Local Planning 
Strategy and Local Planning Scheme No. 3, and 
relevant planning and development policies, to 
ensure alignment and user-friendliness. 

The completed Local Planning Strategy is available on the Town’s 
website. Draft Local Planning Scheme No. 3 has been submitted to the 
Department of Planning for approval by the Western Australian 
Planning Commission before being submitted to the Minister for 
Planning for final approval. This is currently back with the Department 
of Planning for further minor amendments. 

A Review of Local Planning Policies has commenced. Local Planning 
Policies #14 (building height) and #15 (development standards for 
non-residential properties) have been undergone public consultation. 

1.3 Establish strategic 
partnerships and networks 
focused on the revitalisation 
and enhancement of the 
Camelot Precinct. 

Develop an overarching Community 
Consultation Plan for the Camelot Precinct 
which includes a Camelot Precinct Stakeholder 
Reference Group including diverse community 
representation. 

This action has been set aside by Council, as it is not in the updated 
Strategic Community Plan 2016-2023. 

2. Maintain and develop Town infrastructure for the benefit of our community - The Town to preserve, maintain and enhance built community 
facilities to facilitate community connectedness. 

2.1 Celebrate and preserve 
the rich history and heritage 
of the Town. 

Review and update the municipal heritage 
inventory and the Local Planning Scheme No. 3 
Heritage Register.  Develop a Local Heritage 
Policy to provide principles and guidelines for 
preservation and assessment. 

Investigate and promote incentives for 
ratepayers, community or business 
representatives to assist them with heritage 
preservation. 

Actioned in 2014/15. Due for review again in two years’ time. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

2.2 Infrastructure and civil 
works are managed 
effectively and aligned to  
community needs. 

New, renewal and maintenance works are 
completed in line with Asset Management 
Plans (all classes) and Forward Capital Works 
Schedules. 

The Asset Management Plan was updated during the year. The Town 
resurfaced a number of streets including a section of Owston St, a 
section of Lochee St and Healing Lane in line with that Plan. 

2.3 Create opportunities 
and build strategic 
partnerships with 
developers to grow and 
develop our Town’s 
infrastrucure and services. 

Identify and audit local planning areas for key 
services and infrastructure opportunities. 

Explore and instigate development 
opportunities. 

Prepare information booklets about regulatory 
requirements. 

Coordinated planning works are being undertaken in development 
areas, such as Glyde Street/Stuart Street, to identify and instigate 
development opportunities. 

Information booklets and regulatory requirements to be produced 
upon gazettal of Local Planning Scheme No. 3. 

2.4 Implement the revised 
Residential Design Codes. 

Develop new policy to reflect the amendments 
to the WA Residential Design Codes and the 
impact to ancillary accommodation. 

Actioned in 2013/14.  

2.5 Transport planning and 
land use allows for 
accessible and affordable 
transport modes. 

Undertake analysis and research to ensure all 
movement of people is integrated, transport 
modes are effective and assets are maintained 
or renewed to agreed levels of service. 

Review and implement a Traffic Management 
Strategy to support safe vehicular and 
pedestrian movement and support the State 
and Federal Black Spot Program.  

Complete the review of the Cycling and 
Pedestrian Plan. 

The Town gathered new data on its road network with over 50 traffic 
counts taken. No locations in the Town qualified for Black Spot 
funding, meaning that accidents were not present and those that 
occurred were ranked as being less severe than in other 
municipalities.  

A number of investigations were undertaken for local area issues, 
mainly related to sight lines; and work continues on taking advantage 
of opportunities to improve cycle and pedestrian amenity. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

2.6 Public open space is 
managed strategically to 
meet the needs of 
community and reduces the 
impact upon the Long Term 
Financial Plan. 

Develop Reserves and Public Open Space Plan 
that addresses: 

 Increases in utilisation rates; 

 Public safety and access; 

 Whole-of-life costs; 

 Equipment and furniture; 

 Sport and recreational requirements; and 

 Water Wise practices, reticulation and 
irrigation system reviews. 

Stirling Highway Activity Corridor Study to be 
completed and analysed for future action. 

Work to date has included: 

 An audit of all park assets and a condition rating for those assets. 

 An audit of reticulation assets. The Town has maintained its 
Waterwise accreditation and installed a number of flow meters as 
required by the Department of Water. Installed last three flow 
metres on the final three bores in Macs Folly, Gibbon Park and 
Three Boys Park. 

 Reticulation upgrades to provide remote access to watering 
reserves. 

 The replacement of Brown Park playground. 

2.7 Opportunities for the 
provision of underground 
power are proactively 
driven by the Town. 

Continue to pursue options and lobby the State 
Government for continuation of the 
Underground Power Project within the Town. 

Last year marked the launch of Round 6 of the State Government’s 
Underground Power Funding Program, under a revised format, with 
preference given to communities that were prepared to make 
significant contributions towards the cost of this infrastructure. The 
Town surveyed the community and measured strong support for 
underground power, with residents agreeing to make a modest 
financial contribution.  Ultimately the Town’s bid was unsuccessful, 
with the successful bid coming from communities that were prepared 
to put in a far more substantial contribution towards the cost, 
including one bid that offered to cover up to 90% of the cost.  

A meeting was held with the local Member of Parliament to progress 
this matter. We will continue to examine other opportunities to bring 
underground power to the Town in the future. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

2.8 Streetscapes are 
maintained to a high level 
of natural amenity. 

Develop and implement a Streetscape Strategy 
to facilitate the ongoing development, 
preservation and maintenance of the 
environment.   

Complete a Tree Audit and develop and 
communicate a Significant Tree Register for 
preservation purposes. 

Entry statements, verge maintenance and 
medians are maintained in line with the Local 
Planning Scheme No.3 requirements. 

The presentation of streetscapes has been markedly improved, with 
new island treatments and better mulching of traffic islands 
elsewhere in the Town. 

A tree audit has been completed. The Town is in the early stages of 
progressing the Significant Tree Register. 

3. Support businesses and commercial ventures, including schools, in a proactive way - The Town will work with the business, education and not-for-
profit community to determine their needs and act to meet the Town’s responsibilities. 

3.1 The business community 
is informed and supported. 

Planning Frameworks and policy are reviewed 
to ensure support for commercial 
development. 

Planning, health and other relevant information 
is provided to local and potential businesses to 
assist in achieving their strategic and 
operational goals. 

Fledgling and small businesses are supported 
through an active and relevant business 
enterprise network.   

Review planning and development information, 
check lists and guidelines and revise 
accordingly. 

Planning Frameworks and policy were actioned in 2014/15. Other 
initiatives are ongoing, including the the Glyde Street precinct 
revitalisation which will assist small business. 

 

Health assists businesses to meet their food premises obligations 
where applicable, through inspections and the provision of 
information. 



   14 
  

Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

3.2 Create opportunities 
and build stategic 
partnerships with 
developers and the business 
sector to attract commercial 
enterprise to the Town. 

Create a 10 Year Economic Development Plan 
to drive commercial activity and development 
across the Town. 

A ten-year economic development plan has not been created and will 
be considered as a future action by Council. 

3.3 Technology and 
communications strategies 
are embraced to ensure 
business connectivity and 
connectedness is improved 
and effective. 

Develop a Communication Network Plan that 
delivers effective and sustainable digital 
technology solutions to key precinct, business 
and social locations. 

The NBN Network has been introduced into the Town during 2016/17. 
The Town will continue to embrace new communication techology 
opportunities. We will keep the community informed about progress 
towards this important enhancement to communications 
infrastructure. 

4. Promote, protect and enhance the Town’s natural environment - In all activities, the Town works to protect and enhance the air, sea, river, 
groundwater, parks, ovals, streetscapes and bushland and promote the natural assets of the Town to the wider community. 

4.1 Promote sustainable 
development that optimises 
built outcomes and 
minimises environmental 
risk or impact. 

Ensure public health and environmental 
management policies and plans align with the 
objectives and outcomes of the Local Planning 
Strategy No. 3. 

Measures to ensure sustainable development are enforced with all 
planning and building applications. The Public Health plan is due for 
completion after 2020. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

4.2 Enhance, preserve and 
manage risks associated 
with environmental 
management and 
biodiversity. 

Review and update the Environmental 
Management Plan to facilitate the prioritisation 
and resource allocation for natural area asset 
management. Includes: 

 Development of an Environmental 
Management Policy and other key policies 
as identified. 

 Environmental Management Plan 
Framework including corridors,  
re-vegetation plans and fauna. 

Update existing Environmental Management 
plans for the following areas: 

 Garungup Reserve; 

 Mosman Beach; 

 South Mosman Park Bushland; 

 Bay View Park; 

 Chidley Point Reserve; 

 Minum Cove; 

 Mosman Park Golf Course; and 

 Point Roe. 

Develop a Weed Control Strategy to eliminate 
or mitigate the impact and occurrence of weed. 

Half of the outstanding plans are now up to date, with the remaining 
planned work to occur in future budgets. 

Planting activities continued with the assistance of strong community 
volunteers. 

The Town scoped during 2016/17 to develop an Environmental 
Management Plan during 2017/18. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

4.3 Natural assets of the 
Town are accessible and 
enjoyed by all. 

Review/develop plans to facilitate the 
establishment and maintenance of walking and 
cycling trails and pathways which allow access 
to the natural environment. 

Develop a Coastal Foreshore Policy that 
manages the interface between coastal and 
urban environments. 

Complete and update the Heitage Trail project 
with new signage installed. 

No new trails were created within the Town, however work was 
rendered to improve the amenity of those we already have.  

The Town along with the City of Fremantle engaged a consultant to 
develop a Coastal Hazard and Risk Management Adaptation Plan, 
which looks long term at maintaining our coastline against erosion 
and climate change. This is currently out for consultation with the 
community. 

The Heritage Trail project has been set aside by Council, and is to be 
considered as a future action. 

4.4 We are water-wise and 
demonstrate our com-
mitment to sustainable 
water management. 

Continue to investigate a regional approach to 
stormwater management via Western Suburbs 
Regional Organisation of Councils (WESROC). 

The Town maintained its Water Wise accreditation, while installing 
new flow meters on a number of bores. The Town systematically 
monitored the saline levels in all irrigated parks and noticed no 
significant changes from previous years, although the trend is still 
rising, as observed throughout Perth.   

The Town also took part in the WESROC examination of localised 
aquifer recharge in one of its areas. Investigations were completed 
and data collected and reported on. Further work will be undertaken 
as a result of this report. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

5. Encourage a built environment which is consistent with the amenity of the area - The Town to encourage acceptable and sustainable planning and 
development initiatives. 

5.1 Develop and promote 
relevant, sustainable 
development and design. 

Local Planning Strategy and Local Planning 
Scheme No. 3 are reviewed and aligned to 
ensure all strategies and policy support the 
strategic direction of land use and transport 
planning, State Government policy and local 
demographical trends. 

See 1.2 above. 

5.2 Council provides 
community leadership and 
guidance to achieve 
sustainable and quality 
structures. 

Develop a policy to facilitate the design and 
development of environmentally sustainable 
structures and assets. 

Develop a community education program to 
inform and support residents, schools and 
businesses on local and effective sustainability 
practices. 

Identify strategies that support renewable and 
energy efficient opportunities to reduce energy 
consumption, greenhouse gas emissions and 
the community and Town of Mosman Park’s 
environmental footprint. 

A policy to facilitate the design and development of environmentally 
sustainable structures and assets is underway with draft Local 
Planning Policy #15 (development standards for non-residential 
properties) now out for public consultation. 

A community education program will be developed as opportunities 
arise. 

The Town of Mosman Park previously conducted an Energy Audit of 
all its assets throughout the Town, including leased and occupied 
buildings. The Administration Building was changed over to LED lights 
during the year. Where other Town-owned lights need to be changed, 
these are being upgraded to LED lights progressively. Projects for 
increasing solar capacity at the Administration and Depot Buildings 
will be implemented 2017/18. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

5.3 Council proactively 
seeks information and plans 
on the impact of climate 
change. 

Identify and understand risks associated with 
climate change and develop appropriate 
adaption strategies. 

Research has begun on compiling a strategy to address the ‘urban 
heat island effect’ through improved canopy cover and treescaping 
via an urban forest strategy. 

As noted above, the Town along with the City of Fremantle engaged a 
consultant to develop a Coastal Hazard and Risk Management 
Adaptation Plan, which looks long term at maintaining our coastline 
against erosion and climate change. This is currently out for 
consultation with the community. 

5.4 Sustainable waste 
management practices are 
advocated for, developed 
and promoted to minimise 
environmental risk and 
impact.  

Continue implementation of the JDA 
Catchment Management Plan as adopted in 
2013. 

Council to advocate strongly for the continued 
introduction of waste mitigation, recycling and 
resource recovery strategies. 

Continue to promote community education 
focused on sustainable waste management 
behaviours and kerb side recycling. 

The Town commissioned a consultant to look at all its current waste 
streams with the objective to advise on a course of action for future 
contracts.  

A number of options were looked at and are in final due diligence 
phases in preparation for presentation to Council. These options 
included the possibility of a three-bin system, as well as alternative 
bulk waste collection arrangements. 
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6.2 Working Together 

Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6. Engage effectively to encourage community members to participate in the Town’s future - The Town’s community plans will be guided by the 
community in order to meet its needs. 

6.1 Achieve maximum 
community participation 
and appropriate levels of 
consultation in all local 
government matters.   

Develop a Community Engagement Plan that 
includes: 

 Council Meetings; 

 Community Consultation Framework; 

 Elected Member access; 

 Community Networks and Reference 
Groups; 

 Community Forums; 

 Publications and brochures; and 

 Leveraging the Social Sustainability 
Advisory Committee and the 
Environmental Sustainability Advisory 
Committee. 

Develop and implement a Welcome Pack for 
new residents and businesses. 

The Town’s capacity for communication and engagement has been 
expanded through the development of: 

 Corporate style guide – so that Council publications are 
professional, consistent and compliant with Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plan 

 Social media framework which includes: 

o Facebook – including the use of Facebook live video streaming, 
Facebook events, news and comments, Twitter – sharing of 
images, back links to website and other channels, Instagram – 
sharing and gathering of images – genuine two-way 
collaborative conversation; and Email 

 Development of e-news database using MailChimp with almost 
2,000 verified subscribers. 

 Publications 

o Quarterly production of Town News – polled regularly as most 
popular method of communication by Community Survey 

o Monthly advertising in The Post - readership of 50,000 
households in the western suburbs and format updated and 
expanded so that it now includes six feature stories, five 
calendar items and details of web, email and social media 
accounts.  
        Cont. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.1 Cont.  o Community Calendar - 2,000 printed copies were available for 
collection by the community from the Town Administration 
Centre, library and local schools. Strong community sentiment in 
favour (letters to The Post in favour can be cited). 

o Welcome packs are developed and given to new residents when 
they arrive in the community as well as via Homeswest for new 
families that move to the area 

o NB: content prepared for all of the above publications are 
leveraged across web and social media 

 Noticeboards - Used to display important notices such as those 
featured in the channels above 

 Community channels - Direct communication campaigns are 
sometimes done via school or club newsletters to reach certain 
market sub-segments 

 Targeted campaigns are done for issues affecting particular areas 

 Electronic communication with the community, thereby saving 
thousands per year in letter box drops and printed brochures 

 Many brochures are developed in-house, saving on the costs of 
external designers. 

A Community Engagement Plan has yet to be developed.  A Community 
Engagement Policy exists and is utilised. 

The Social Sustainability Advisory Committee and the Environmental 
Sustainability Advisory Committee are no longer operating. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.2 The Community 
Development Fund is 
flexible and responsive to 
community need. 

Improve the user-friendliness of the 
Community Development Fund application 
process. Further support community with 
external grant application processes. 

Continue to work with the community to 
develop projects that meet funding criteria 
and assist in their implementation as 
appropriate. 

The supported expenditure for the Community Chest program changed 
in August 2015 to be more ‘capacity-building’ focused rather than 
‘project/event’ focused. Changes also included a reduced funding pool 
and the grants being offered once annually instead of quarterly. This 
resulted in improved quality of the applications and targeted income 
streams for groups.  

The Community Chest called for entries in November, and decisions 
were made by Council in December to allow applicants to access funds 
in the start of the new calendar year. A second round was conducted 
later in the financial year. Six grants were awarded under the 
Community Chest program to the sum of $6,842. Funding provided by 
the Community Chest was able to provide support for a Parenting 
Centre, storage cabinets, hand tools, lighting upgrades and office 
equipment. 

One-on-one support and guidance continued to be provided to 
community organisations who were seeking funding for projects.  

6.3 The Town is open, 
consistent and trans-
parent in all com-
munications. 

Develop and implement a Strategic Marketing 
and Communications Plan that includes: 
standardised templates and format; brand 
identity; corporate style guide; and relevant 
policy and procedures. 

The Corporate Style Guide has been completed.  Other elements of the 
Strategic Marketing and Communications Plan are yet to be completed 
and will be considered as a future action. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.4 Strategic community 
development and com-
munity capacity building 
requirements are identi-
fied, coordinated and 
integrated into the 
Town’s planning and 
activities. 

Develop a holistic Community Development 
Plan that captures the four key pillars of 
community: 

 Capacity Building 

 Sport and Recreation  

 Arts and Culture  

 Access and Inclusion 

Integrate the existing community action plans 
once the Community Development Plan is 
complete. 

The development of a Community Development Plan has been 
budgeted for 2017/18.  

6.5 All members of the 
community can 
participate in local 
activities and access all 
services and programs. 

Continue to review the Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plan (DAIP) annually and implement 
amendments accordingly.  

Develop a Youth Strategy to ensure 
recreational, educational and social needs are 
met. Continue to explore National Youth 
Week events, music workshops and the 
development of a Skate Park. 

Continue to support a variety of activities and 
events for seniors including Seniors’ Week 
events, technology/computer classes, walking 
groups and information sessions. 

A thorough review of the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) was 
undertaken in 2016 and a new DAIP was compiled spanning 2016-2021. 
Details of DAIP implementaton are provided elsewhere in this report. 

Town-funded Youth services/activities included: 

 The Mosman Park Youth Advisory Council (MPYAC) has developed 
their committee structure to become self-managing. Activities they 
coordinated included: 

o 100 young people participating in the STOMP! amazing race with 
involvement from local community and sporting groups and 
local businesses. 

o The Local Champion Celebration Night (Celebrate YOUth) 
attended by 30 young people, the Town’s Mayor and Councillors 
in celebration of National Youth Week. The event was also 
supported by Department of Local Government and 
Communities.       Cont. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.5 Cont.  o Workshops for young people including: barista skills, pottery, 
card making, first aid, fashion upcycling, sushi making, paddling, 
yoga and job readiness sessions. 

o 83 young people representing 19 different Youth Advisory 
Councils attended the 2nd YACtivate Youth Conference in 
August 2016 with funding received from Department of Local 
Government and Communities.  

 Regular skate clinics were run by Skateboarding WA. 

 Bike skills workshops and a decorated bike competition were held 
during Bike Week. 

 School holiday activities including star gazing, Lego and sandcastle 
building, as well as activities at The Grove, including Halloween. 

 Youth Encouragement Grants awarded to Lydia Attwooll, Millie 
Bates, Brandon Boccola and Lydia Matthews. 

Town-funded Seniors’ services/activities included: 

 Seniors’ services provided by Shine Community Services 

 Seniors’ focused basic first aid training 

 Seniors’ housing seminars 

 Promotion and support for walking groups thoughout the Town 

 Seniors’ Week morning tea hosted at the Mosman Park Bowling 
Club 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.6 The Town facilitates, 
encourages and promotes 
a vibrant and diverse 
cultural and artistic 
environment. 

Develop and implement a Cultural Plan that 
supports and coordinates arts and cultural 
programs, events (annual and one-off), 
awards, sponsorships, public art, facilities and 
general information. 

Engage local groups and organisations in the 
development of initiatives and programs. 

Continue to support MosArts and the ongoing 
development of cultural programs in the 
Town. 

The development of a Cultural Plan will be considered in the future. 

Arts and cultural initiatives included: 

 Development of an on-line Public Art trail that can be accessed from 
the Town’s website 

 Developing partnerships with public artists 

 Supporting and promoting art exhibitions at The Grove Library 

 Supporting projects held at the Leighton Battery Heritage Site 

 Promoting The Grove’s heritage initiatives and research 

The Town also partnered with local community groups to deliver free 
community events for families in Mosman Park. 

6.7 Our community 
actively participates in 
sport and recreation 
activities. 

Develop and implement a Sport and 
Recreation Master Plan that captures the 
Town’s: 

 Active and passive activities and 
programs; 

 Wellbeing and connectedness 
promotion; 

 Programming and coordination of 
services and programs; 

 Management of community facilities, 
fees and charges schedule; and 

 User group engagement. 

A Sport and Recreation Master Plan was developed during the year and 
finalised following extensive public consultation. The Plan can be 
viewed on the Town’s website. 

Sport and Recreation related activities included: 

 Employment of a part-time Club Development Officer to work 
across the Towns of Mosman Park and Claremont and the Shire of 
Peppermint Grove with funding provided by the Department of 
Sport and Recreation; 

 Club Forums and Workshops held throughout the year; 

 Promotion and support of Heart Foundation Walking Groups 
including morning tea for existing groups held in conjunction with 
the Shire of Peppermint Grove; and 

 Mosman Park Sport & Recreation E-Newsletter distributed to local 
clubs. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.8 Through the Town’s 
facilities and urban 
design, the diverse and 
individual needs of 
community are met. 

The Age Friendly Communities Plan is 
implemented and integrated into all facets of 
planning and development.  

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan is 
implemented and integrated into all facets of 
planning and development. 

The Age-Friendly Communities Plan is an ongoing document that is 
referred to regularly during project planning.  

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) was reviewed in 2016 
with significant public consultation undertaken to aid in the 
development of a new DAIP spanning 2016-21. Universal Access is an 
integral part of all Town processes. 

6.9 Improved accessibility 
to, and effectiveness of, 
services and initiatives 
through a long term 
commitment to social 
media, digital and online 
communications 
development. 

Develop a Social Media Policy and plan. 

Develop a Communication Network Plan. 

Development of a Social Media Policy and Procedure is now complete.  
A Social Media Plan and a Communication Network Plan are yet to be 
completed and will be considered as a future action under an 
overarching communications strategy. 

6.10 Maintain our Fair 
Trade Accreditation. 

Ensure that all facets of the Fair Trade Town 
Accreditation criteria are integrated into all 
relevant plans and activities.  Ensure current 
level of accreditation is maintained. 

The Town’s recent review of its Purchasing Policy emphasised 
accountable processes and sustainability principles, although it did not 
expressly incorporate Fair Trade principles. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.11 Council 
acknowledges the 
invaluable contribution 
that residents make to 
the Town – past, present 
and future.  

Continue to support and improve upon key 
community events including: 

 Volunteer Appreciation 

 Australia Day Awards and celebrations 

 ANZAC Day Commemoration Service 

 Citizenship Ceremonies 

 Annual Community Fair 

 Review the Civic Events Schedule 

Continue to encourage and support 
volunteerism and community groups through 
local events and targeted campaigns. 

Key community events included: 

 The 2017 Combined Councils’ Australia Day Celebration was held at 
the Cottelsoe Civic Centre, joined by the Shire of Peppermint Grove 
and Town of Cottesloe.  The Citizen of the Year Award for 2017 was 
presented to Ms Rhonda Miller, who has nobly served as Chaplain at 
the Mosman Park Primary School since 2007. Other awards were 
presented to Young Citizen of the Year - Amy Brades, Senior Citizen 
of the Year – Brian Millmore and Community Group of the Year - 
Mosman Park Community Group. 

 Participation in the Annual ANZAC Day Commemoration Service and 
morning tea with more than 500 people attending. The Mosman 
Park RSL, the Mosman Bay Sea Scout Group, and the Mosman Park 
Youth Advisory Council were represented. 

 The 2017 Mosman Park Community Fair held at Mann Oval with 
free stalls provided to local community groups for fundraising and 
promotion. 

 Citizenship ceremonies held regularly, including a special service 
held on Australia Day. 

Volunteerism was further encouraged and supported by: 

 Displays promoting volunteering featured at the Mosman Park 
Community Fair, The Grove Library, and the Council Administration 
Centre. 

 Promotion of National Volunteers’ Week to the wider community. 

         Cont. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

6.11 Cont.   The 2016 Mosman Park Volunteer Awards celebration event held at 
St Hilda’s School with the Volunteer of the Year being Awarded to 
Kate Woolhouse of the Mosman Park Youth Advisory Council. Long-
serving Volunteer Awards were presented to Kevin Casey (Rocky 
Bay), Leanda Syme (Mosman Park Netball Club), Waclaw (Vass) 
Bielski (Shine Community Services), Wendy Taylor (Mosman Park 
Tennis Club), Margaret Bond (Cottesloe Surf Life Saving Club), 
Georgina Pearce (RFDS Flying 1000), and Peter and Kerri Wilkinson 
(Fremantle–Mosman Park Cricket Club). 

 Thank a Volunteer Day Sundowner held in Memorial Park. 

7. Provide an environment that enables people to connect and build partnerships - The Town to enter into cooperative arrangements with other 
organisations which can add value to its work and assist to use resources most effectively. 

7.1 Community is 
engaged in the 
preservation and 
management of the 
natural environment. 

Develop a Community Environmental 
Education and Events Program including: 

 Garden Competition; 

 Clean Up Australia; and 

 Native Plant Subsidy Scheme.  

Continue to coordinate and involve 
community groups and individuals in re-
vegetation and protection programs. 

Effectively utilise the Environmental  
Sustainability Advisory Committee as interface 
between the Council and Community. 

The annual Clean Up Australia Day event was held at Chidley Point 
during March 2017, co-hosted by the Mosman Bay Sea Scouts, Western 
Earth Carers and Friends of Mosman Park Bushland. 

The Native Plant Subsidy Scheme continues to be popular, and a 
number of revegetation activities occurred during planting season.  

The Town once again hosted its very popular Brunch With the Birds 
event, in partnership with BirdLife Australia during November 2016. 
This wonderful event encourages local residents to explore our Town’s 
precious wild places, and to marvel at our native bird species. 

The Garden Competition was not undertaken following its cancellation 
a number of years ago, and the Environmental Sustainability Advisory 
Committee is still disbanded in preference for a more open, 
community-wide, consultation process on environmental issues. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

7.2 Continue to nurture 
and develop strategic 
partnerships that 
collectively support the 
delivery of community 
services.  

Continue to participate in The Grove Library 
partnership to ensure services are relevant 
and continually evolving to suit community 
need. 

Continue to participate in the SHINE 
(previously known as TAPSS Community Care) 
partnership to ensure services for seniors and 
people with disability are relevant and 
continually evolving to suit community need. 

Continue to participate in the Western Earth 
Carers partnership to ensure recycling, 
sustainability and waste management services 
are relevant and continually evolving to suit 
community need. 

Continue to explore new concepts and 
partnerships to support service delivery. 

The Town endorsed the amount of $687,341 for the funding of the 
Grove Library in 2016/17. The Grove Library partnered to host an 
Auslan storytime session for children during Disability Awareness Week. 
The Library also assisted in the promotion of the Volunteer of the Year 
Awards promotion of youth programs such as the Mosman Park Youth 
Advisory Council, Youth Encouragement Grants, and STOMP!. 

The Town continues to provide funding ($78,432) to SHINE (previously 
known as TAPSS Community Care) to provide services to seniors and 
people with disabilities in the local area. We also partner with them on 
events and cross-promote activities such as presentations to seniors. 

Relationships between technical professionals in the western suburbs 
are positive, with cross sharing of documentation and common 
knowledge assisting in creating best-of-breed documents, and 
minimising wasted time in creating new contracts.  

The Town maintains a strong relationship with Main Roads Western 
Australia, which assists in exchanging timely, correct advice, for the 
betterment of the community. 

The Town part-funds Western Earth Carers through the WMRC to 
provide information and events relating to sustainability and waste 
management in the local area. The Earth Carers were also involved in 
the Town’s Community Fair and their water bottle refill stations were 
utilised at Town events. 

New partnerships are regularly explored to support service delivery. A 
significant partnership has been with the Department of Sport and 
Recreation (DSR) and neighbouring local Governments to fund a Club 
Development Officer. 
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Strategy  Action or Project Outcome 

7.3 Create and maintain a 
safe and connected 
community.   

Review and implement the Community Safety 
and Crime Prevention Plan including: 

 Involve community representatives, 
Police, non-government and government 
agencies in a coordinated and pragmatic 
approach; 

 Review of the graffiti response strategy to 
ensure its effectiveness; 

 Support logical urban design strategies to 
mitigate crime; 

 Leverage neighbourhood activities;  

Review the Local Emergency Management 
Plan in partnership with all stakeholders. 

Community Safety related initiatives for the year included: 

 Inter-agency (western suburbs) networking meetings and meetings 
with representatives from WA Police and Department of Housing; 

 Regular communication around community safety in the Town 
News, e-news, website, Facebook and newspaper advertising; 

 2016 Halloween Hotspot activities and event at the Grove Library; 

 The Town utilises graffiti-recording software to track incidences of 
graffiti vandalism and was able to upgrade equipment this year 
thanks to a State Government grant from WA Police; 

 Speed trailer display rotated throughout the Town;  

 Free graffiti removal wipes and engraver hire available from Council 
reception; 

 Eyes on the Street and Verbal Judo training for Administration staff; 

 Neighbourhood barbecues run in various parks across the Town to 
provide community safety information and encourage neighbours to 
get to know one another; and 

 A security rebate program was rolled out to support those residents 
who wish to upgrade their home security. 

Local Emergency Management Plan currently being reviewed. 

7.4 An inter-generational 
approach is used to 
sustain community 
facilities and support local 
community groups and 
organisations. 

Complete and implement the Communities 
Facilities Policy and Plan. 

Actively work with facilities users to ensure 
services are adequate and maintained 
effectively. 

Aspects of a Communities Facilities Policy and Plan will be incorporated 
into Sport and Recreation related policies in 2017/18. 

Regular feedback is sought from users of the Margaret Baldwin Centre 
and Alf Adams Pavilion to improve services and streamline processes. 
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6.3 Delivering Sustainable Services 

Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8. Deploy a sustainable financial strategy to ensure resources are available for the work required - The Town must ensure it has the financial and 
other resources required to operate required and approved programs and to effectively maintain its assets. 

8.1 Council decision 
making is transparent and 
in line with community 
aspirations. 

Develop, implement and resource the 
Department of Local Government Integrated 
Planning and Reporting Framework and 
Informing Strategies including but not limited 
to: 

 Strategic Community Plan (biennial 
review); 

 Corporate Business Plan (biennial); 

 Long Term Financial Plan and Annual 
Budget (annual); 

 Integrated Workforce Plan (annual); 

 Risk Management Plan (annual); 

 Human Resource Plan (biennial); 

 Asset Management Plans (annual); 

 Major Projects Schedule (annual); and 

 Forward Capital Works Plan (annual).  

Develop a concise, compliant and integrated 
reporting framework that captures all Council, 
legislative and planning requirements. 

Compliance with the integrated planning and reporting framework is 
ongoing.   

The Strategic Community Plan was reviewed in early 2016. 

The review of the Corporate Business Plan and Long Term Financial Plan 
are underway. 

The Integrated Workforce and Human Resources Plans were reviewed 
in 2015 and will be reviewed again in the near future. 

A major review of the Risk Management Plan is scheduled for 2017/18. 

The Asset Management Plan was reviewed in 2016/17. The Major 
Projects Schedule and Forward Capital Works Plan are developed 
annually, are included in the Long Term Financial Plan and inform the 
Annual Budget. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8.2 Identify alternative 
and/or additional 
revenue streams. 

Maximise grant funding opportunities and 
alternative revenue streams to improve 
services and service provision. 

The Town has direct links to State and Federal grants information and 
regularly investigates opportunities as they become available. 

Town staff continue to work closely with community in identifying 
sponsorship opportunities and opportunities to partner in projects. 

The Town has received a total of $611,870 during 2016/17 in grants and 
subsidies funding towards the following initiatives: 

 Roads to Recovery Federal funding and direct grants from Main 
Roads WA for the upgrade of our roads infrastructure; 

 Traineeships for a works trainee and horticulture trainee from both 
State and Federal funding; 

 Rehabilitation of Mosman Beach; 

 Coastwest Project / Coastal Plan for Port, Leighton & Mosman 
Beach; 

 Part-Time Club Development Officer; 

 Western Suburbs KidSport; 

 National Youth Week; 

 Seniors Week Morning Tea; 

 Auslan Storytime; 

 Halloween HotSpot Safety Project; 

 Mosman Park Community Fair; 

 YACtivate! Youth Conference; and 

 Graffiti Reporting Device. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8.3 Proactively and 
thoroughly research the 
implications of local 
government reform and 
the impact to the Town. 

Investigate the full spectrum of financial 
opportunities and risks associated with the 
local government reform process and fiscal 
impact to the organisation and community. 

Actioned in 2013/14 to 2014/15. No longer applicable as the local 
government reform process did not go ahead. 

8.4 Ensure the  
inter-generational impact 
of asset management is 
identified, planned for, 
and is sustainable.  

Review the existing Asset Management Plans 
and ensure all asset classes are supported by a 
robust, current and documented strategy and 
funding model which is supported by 
adequate staff resources. 

Complete and implement the Community 
Facilities Policy and Plan. 

Ensure all renewal and maintenance costs are 
integrated into the Long Term Financial Plan, 
Annual Budget, Forward Capital Works Plan 
and Major Project Schedule.  

Ensure the property data base is up-to-date 
and GIS capability is reviewed. 

Asset Management Plan review completed during the year. 

The Town instigates the the Department of Local Government and 
Community’s Integrated Planning Framework process.  This process 
references four critical planning documents: the Long Term Financial 
Plan, Workforce Plan, Asset Management Plan and the Capital Works 
Plan.  These four documents are used to develop the annual budgeting 
process which allocates the funds required to ensure long-term 
sustainability of all renewal and maintenance costs.  

No discrepancies have been noted in the GIS database in relation to 
property. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8.5 The Town is resilient 
and financially 
sustainable through 
effective and transparent 
short and long term 
financial management. 

Review and effectively plan for the funding 
and implementation of the Major Projects 
Plan. 

Review the Town’s Borrowing and Rates 
Strategy. 

Review the Risk Management Plan annually to 
ensure it reflects the risk profile of the Town 
and Risk Treatments are effective. 

Ensure the Plant Renewal Schedule is 
reviewed annually and integrated into the 
Long Term Financial Plan.   

All of these areas are considered through the review of the Long Term 
Financial Plan and the annual Budget process, which includes 
workshops with Councillors.  

8.6 The Town is 
accountable, compliant 
and transparent in all 
strategic and operational 
matters. 

All compliance, regulatory requirements and 
standards are achieved in the agreed 
timeframes, including: 

 Annual Report; 

 Compliance Audit Return; 

 Audit; 

 Council Meetings; 

 Reporting; 

 Returns; 

 Local Laws; 

 Delegation of Authority;  

 Policy (new and review); and  

 Integrated Planning and Reporting. 

Compliance with regulatory requirements was independently audited in 
the following areas during 2016/17: 

 Annual Financial Report; 

 Annual Compliance Audit Return; and 

 General compliance reviews in relation to interest and gift 
disclosures and Council meeting minutes, review of annual and 
primary returns and use of delegated authority, related party 
disclosures and other statutory reporting requirements. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8.7 Corporate information 
systems are compliant, 
accessible and managed 
accordingly. 

Review the Records Management Strategy, 
including but not limited to: 

 Feasibility study to ascertain current, 
future and alternative storage needs; 

 Review and develop policies; 

 Review the Record Keeping Plan; 

 Maintain, assess and preserve the Town’s 
records; 

 Timely disposal; 

 Storage and retrieval of records 
(electronically); 

 Freedom of Information requests; and 

 Staff training – record keeping practices 
and software. 

In accordance with Section 28 of the State Records Act 2000, the 
Town’s Record Keeping Plan was reviewed in 2016 to determine the 
minimum requirements that direct which records are to be created by 
the Town and how it is to keep its records.  

The Record Keeping Plan is the primary means of providing evidence of 
compliance with the Act and the implementation of best practice record 
keeping within the Town. 

8.8 The Town is prepared 
and resourced to 
effectively respond to 
service and operations 
interruptions. 

The Business Continuity Plan is reviewed with 
all stakeholders and resourced accordingly. 

A draft Business Response Plan was developed to establish the process 
and procedures required in case of an emergency.  This will be further 
reviewed and finalised in 2017/18. 

8.9 Procurement and 
contract management is 
cost effective, 
competitive and 
compliant. 

Review procurement, tender and contract 
management procedures. 

This is an ongoing process improvement area with procurement, 
tendering and contract managment practices reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. The appointment of a dedicated Contracts Advisor in 2017 will 
assist to further identify improvement opportunities. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

8.10 The Town enforces 
State legislation and Local 
Laws to enhance 
community safety and 
protection of local 
amenity. 

Ensure Ranger and Public Health services are 
visible and responsive. 

Ensure Ranger and Public Health responsibility 
is aligned to Local Laws and Council policy. 

Ranger patrol routes have been reviewed to ensure that all areas of the 
Town are patrolled to maintain visibility to the Community and ensure a 
constant presence in the Town.   

The Town’s Health Officer ensures public health and the proper 
management of food safety.  

Inclusion of important messages about health issues included in the 
Town’s publications including the Town News, the monthly full page 
advertisement in The Post newspaper, and on the Town’s website. 

9. Provide citizen focused services to the community including best practice customer service and communication - The Town should have the 
capacity and capability to deliver all required and necessary services within its mandate, in a timely, customer-focused way. 

9.1 The Community is 
represented effectively 
and honestly. 

Elected Members continue to participate in 
regular and strategic information and planning 
sessions to inform decision making. 

Councillors provided input into the Strategic Community Plan review 
and to the budget workshops for the 2017/18 Budget.   

Regular elected member briefing sessions have been introduced to 
keep elected members abreast of current and developing issues. 
Agenda Forums have been introduced one week before the ordinary 
meeting of Council so that elected members have more time to 
consider reports. 

9.2 All customer 
interactions – are 
professional, customer-
orientated and consistent 
across the organisation. 

Develop a Customer Service Charter. 

Identify, develop and implement key process 
improvements to streamline and improve the 
customer/citizen experience.  

Explore online Bill Pay capability and targeted 
information for building and planning 
customers. 

A Customer Service Charter was completed in 2014/15.  

2016/17 initiatives include: 

 Interactive PDF forms where possible; 

 Online surveys for the Community Fair with feedback data gathered 
electronically on the day; 

 Feedback for STOMP from participants was gathered electronically. 

The ability for residents and ratepayers to use online payments systems 
is being considered during 2018. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

9.3 Public health risks are 
identified and managed. 

Develop and implement a Public Health Policy 
with relevant procedures. 

Develop and implement a Public Health Plan. 

Continue to undertake assessments and 
inspections for disease, pest-control, noise, 
food, immunisation and safety. 

Statutory obligations being met – ongoing operational task. 

Public Health Plan to be completed in 2019/20. 

9.4 Council and 
management advocates 
strongly on behalf of the 
community to promote, 
represent and support the 
progress and 
development of the Town 
of Mosman Park. 

Actively engage and participate in WALGA, 
State, Federal Government strategic policy 
development and Metro Local Government 
Reform agenda. 

Review and streamline governance processes 
including Agenda’s, Council Minutes and 
Council requirements. 

The Town remained a WALGA member and was represented through its 
elected members at the Central Metropolitan Zone and state-wide 
meetings where appropriate. 

The Town met its obligations with respect to the Department of Local 
Government and Communities directives on metropolitan local 
government reform.  
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

10. Attract, support, develop and retain an effective and efficient workforce that works to best meet the needs of the community - The Town 
should have an excellent staff group, suitably trained and motivated to deliver Council’s required and approved programs and services using best 
practice communication.

10.1 Develop and retain a 
highly skilled, 
professional and 
responsive workforce. 

Develop a Human Resources Plan with the Key 
Result Areas of: 

 Organisational Development; 

 Performance; 

 Workforce Planning; and 

 Compliance 

Ensure the following areas are included: 

 HR Reporting Framework to support the 
HR Plan; 

 Staff Retention Strategy; 

 Workforce Risk Profile; 

 Wellness Program; 

 Occupation Safety and Health; and 

 Enterprise Bargaining. 

There has been a continued focus on ensuring the Town has the 
resources to provide quality service to the community. As part of this 
focus the Town is actively participating in benchmarking projects with 
PWC and WALGA. The results of these projects and further research will 
be utilised in the creation of a Human Resources Plan specifically, and a 
Strategic Workforce Plan in the next 12 months. This plan will align with 
key organisational objectives. 

In addition, the organisation is working to establish an organisation-
wide responsible officers’ matrix to ensure appropriate team structures 
and review allocation of tasks.   

Training continues in accordance with the budget and mandatory 
training requirements. The Town has also utilised periods of leave 
coverage to support internal staff stepping up into more senior 
positions for the purposes of development, instead of recruiting 
externally. 

Health and Wellness programs continue as budgeted. The Town has a 
contract on an as-needs basis with an Employee Assistance Program.  

Negotiation will commence shortly for the replacement of the ‘Outdoor 
Workers Enterprise Agreement’, set to expire mid 2018. 
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Strategy Action or Project Outcome 

10.2 Internal 
comunications are open 
and consistent. 

Develop an internal HR communications 
strategy to ensure all staff are engaged and 
up-to-date with current affairs and the level of 
organisational performance. 

Staff are regularly engaged through the information disseminated from: 
staff meetings, toolboxes, EMT meetings and OSH committee meetings. 
In addition the distribution of meeting minutes or presentations either 
internally or at a Council level, allow staff to remain up-to-date on 
current issues across different work scopes. 

10.32 Maintain a 
cohesive, team oriented 
and harmonious 
workplace culture. 

Ensure all workplace compliance 
requirements are met and corporate values 
are embedded into the workplace. 

The Town has completed a review of the Code of Conduct to maintain 
its relevance and continued adherence to high standards of behaviour. 
The Town is scheduled to complete a “revamp” of internal induction 
processes to engage with all new starters in relation to Town values and 
expected behaviours. The Town has also conducted Equal Employment 
Opportunity and disability and inclusion training sessions to increase 
staff’s understanding of obligations and to reinforce compliant conduct. 

10.4 All accommodation 
and operational needs of 
the Town are met to a 
satisfactory level. 

Review the accommodation and service 
delivery requirements of the Town’s 
Administration Building. 

The Town completed a number of minor updates to the Administration 
Building during the year. This includes but is not limited to: painting, 
increased office space, lighting updates (internal and external), and 
movement of the print room to a more accessible location. The Town is 
also investigating options to improve the overall security of the building 
and the safety of employees during entry and lock up. 

10.5 All Town resources, 
services and operations 
are optimised to achieve 
maximum levels of 
productivity. 

Continuously identify opportunities to  
re-engineer internal, governance, operational 
and strategic systems and processes to 
optimise productivity and maximise 
efficiencies. 

Continuous improvement principles are an ongoing part of the 
performance review system. 
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partnership with us, strive to deliver quality locally-driven and sustainable projects and 

programs.  

  



 

   40 
  

8 SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

8.1 Protecting and Enhancing Our Natural Environment 

The Town continues to be active where possible and seeks every opportunity to enhance our 

magnificent local environment.  

The Town was assisted by the WMRC Earth Carers who continue to work collaboratively with 

the community through courses to teach sustainability principles. Working together with 

relevant stakeholders will be vital as the Town looks to formally review its waste collection 

streams to ensure we continue with the best value approach into the long term. 

Such sustainability projects were not isolated to waste, but also our water practices. The Town 

retained its waterwise accreditation from the Department of Water, by actively monitoring and 

managing what we use on our reserves and buildings. We were also successful in obtaining a 

Coastwest Grant from the Department of Planning which will see future erosion control and 

revegetation to the Mosman Beach area. 

8.2 Building Social Development 

An active community that is both well informed and empathetic to each other is critical for any 

sustainability effort to succeed. It is important that the community is brought onboard at the 

right time and with the right information to assist the Town in creating the vision of what life 

will be like in the years to come.  If done well, this can create value for all the residents and 

visitors to Mosman Park, making it an even better place to live, work and visit.  To do this, the 

Town has continued to be supportive of community groups in both financial and in-kind ways, 

with the objective of these interactions being to create stronger community groups which will 

continue to do good work for, and on behalf of, the area. 

8.3 Ensuring Strong Economic Growth 

Financially, the Town has taken advantage of opportunities to supplement income and reduce 

costs, and will continue to do so. This includes the upgrade of lighting in the Town’s 

Administration Building to LED and substantial progress towards the installation of solar panels 

at the Depot and Administration Buildings.  Structural changes to the organisation were also 

made so that costs could be kept under control with greater capacity to deliver services.  This 

continues to be a focus for the Town. 
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No financial decision or operation of any organisation is without risk, and progress towards a 

better managed safety risk system in relation to contractors and our own staff will lead to 

reduced down time and reduced costs – allowing the Town to be more consistent and reliable in 

the delivery of our services. 

Work has continued this year to develop the Town’s asset management system, in order for us 

to focus on what is required to be maintained and introduced in the future, and at what cost. 

8.4 Protecting and Enhancing Our Bushland 

Year on year the Town is fortunate to work with a number of community groups and 

stakeholders to enhance our bushland and natural areas. The Friends of Mosman Park Bushland 

have continued to do their part conducting regular ‘Busy Bees’ every Friday and the last Sunday 

of each month, as well as dedicated planting days during the planting season. We will be 

working with them to increase their patronage and support to ensure this continues.   

The Friends Group and the Town of Mosman Park hosted its annual community planting day at 

Garungup Park on Sunday 25 June 2017. The Town also hosted another successful ‘Brunch with 

the Birds’ in coordination with Birdlife Australia, helping to educate the local and wider 

community about our precious wildlife. 

The Town continued to take part in the Native Plant Subsidy Scheme run by WESROC and their 

feral animal monitoring program which helps inform the Town of action required, if any. 

Bushcare activities are also undertaken at certain times during the year with school groups from 

the Western Suburbs, including Beehive Montessori and Christ Church Grammar School.  

Attention has been turned to updating existing management plans for our natural areas to 

ensure they are still relevant, which will help guide the management of natural areas for the 

next generation.  
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9 STATUTORY REPORTS 

9.1 Disability Services Report 2016-2017 

The Town is committed to ensuring that Mosman Park is an accessible and inclusive community 

for people with disabilities, their families and carers. The Disability Services Act (1993) requires 

Local Governments to have a Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP). The DAIP is to be 

implemented not only by the public authority, but also by its agents and contractors who 

provide services to the public on behalf of the local government.  

This is the first year for reporting on the Town’s 2016-2021 DAIP, which guided the Town’s 

activities for the year based around eight outcome areas. The progress made in these outcome 

areas by the Town, and its agents and contractors, are detailed below. 

Outcome 1 - People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access 
the services of, and any events organised by, the Town of Mosman Park. 

 Suez, the Town’s waste contractor, provided a service where they collect, empty and replace 
rubbish and recycling bins for seniors and people with disability who require assistance. 

 Quality Traffic Management ensured disability access was maintained during any road 
closures or events. 

 Town events are designed to be accessible to all, and we encourage attendees to identify 
any access requirements or additional needs that we can further address. 

 The Town continues to fund Shine Community Services to provide Home and Community 
Care services to the ageing population and people with disabilities. This includes social 
activities, shopping, transport, gardening services and maintenance. 

 The Grove Library coordinates a home delivery service of library resources to house-bound 
customers and people with disabilities in the local community - “Words on Wheels”.  

 Earth Carers endeavour to utilise accessible venues for their events and also use 
microphones on tours to aid those with hearing impairments. 

 The Town utilised Auslan interpreters at events throughout the year, including ANZAC Day, 
Australia Day and Storytime at the Grove Library for International Day of People with 
Disability. 

Outcome 2 - People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access 
the Town of Mosman Park buildings, facilities and infrastructure.  

 The Swan Canoe Club completed major refurbishments to their leased facility allowing for 
disability access to the first floor. 

 New kerb ramps have been installed, and significant footpath repairs have occurred 
throughout the Town, in consultation with people with disability, to improve footpath 
accessibility. 

 Stair nosing was installed to the steps at David Jones Pavilion to improve access for those 
with vision impairment. 

 The Town regularly reminds residents to prune vegetation that may be impacting on 
footpath access. 
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 The Town’s planning and building processes ensure developments meet the requirements 
for disability access including the provision of parking. 

 The Playground equipment at Brown Park was replaced, incorporating soft-fall at the base 
allowing for easy access. 

 Access improvements to local bus stops have been implemented throughout the Town. 
 The Golf Club has commenced a process to incorporate accessible toilets in the facility. 

Outcome 3 - People with disabilities receive information from the Town of Mosman Park in a 
format that will enable them to access the information as readily as other people are able to 
access it.  

 The E-services Specialist at the Grove Library visits house-bound customers who require help 
with accessing on-line content and setting up their devices to access library content.  

 The Grove Library has a growing collection of e-books, e-magazines, e-audiobooks and large-
print books. A special collection has also been set up for children with Dyslexia in the Library. 

 The Town News has been redesigned for enhanced readability through use of a new font and 
higher white/black resolution for ease of reading.  It is also available in a variety of formats. 

 The Town’s electronic newsletter now has ‘plug-ins’ to assist people with vision impairments. 
 The Town’s style guide has been updated to recommend Calibri font at size 13 as the 

standard across the Town for accessibility.  
 The Town utilises social media as an additional information channel. 

Outcome 4 - People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service as other 
people from the staff of the Town of Mosman Park.  

 Information about disability access and inclusion is incorporated into the induction process 
for all new staff and Councillors, including a short video on providing good customer service. 

 Staff at the Town receive an ‘access and inclusion handbook’ to help guide them in decision 
making including how they might learn about and attend events for all abilities. 

 Grievance processes are designed to be adaptable to any circumstances and staff are trained 
to be flexible. 

 Staff at the Town continue to liaise with local disability service providers on areas of 
common interest. 

Outcome 5 - People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make 
complaints to the Town of Mosman Park. 

 The Town utilises the ‘Snap, Send, Solve’ app for residents and visitors to quickly and easily 
inform the Town of any issues or concerns via their smart phones or tablets. 

 The Town’s Rangers and Customer Liaison Officer often meet residents with disabilities on 
site to discuss any concerns they might have and, where possible, address issues 
immediately. 

 The Town accepts complaints in a variety of formats including email, the website, telephone, 
hard copy and in-person.  

 The Town actively seeks feedback from people with disabilities, carers and service providers 
to improve services. 
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Outcome 6 - People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to 
participate in any public consultation by the Town of Mosman Park.  

 The Town uses a variety of mediums to communicate with stakeholders including newspaper 
adverts, website, electronic and hard copy mail-outs, posters, noticeboards, social media, 
telephone, National Relay Service and face-to-face. 

 External workshop presenter ensured materials were available in alternative formats as 
required.  

 The Town has greater community engagement via social media and connectivity across 
platforms. 

 Community consultations are open to all members of the public, held in accessible venues 
and advertised through a variety of means to target a wide range of people. 

Outcome 7 – People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to obtain and 
maintain employment with the Town of Mosman Park.  

 The Town is committed to the attraction, retention and development of people with 
disability through inclusive employment practices and an inclusive culture that supports and 
encourages employees with disabilities. 

 The Town shares employment opportunities via Twitter, Facebook and LinkedIn to reach a 
broader audience of candidates. 

 The Town has flexible working arrangements to suit employee needs. 
 The Grove Library continues to offer employment opportunities to people with disabilities. 
 The Town has team members with physical, intellectual and cognitive disabilities and 

continues to support staff with mental health concerns. 
 The Town provides an Employee Assistance Program which provides free counselling 

services to staff and their immediate families. 
 Staff have access to ergonomic keyboards and mice, sit-stand desks, and other modified 

equipment to suit individual needs. 

Outcome 8 - People with disability have the same opportunities as others to have their needs 
and entitlements considered in all Town of Mosman Park processes. 

 The DAIP continues to be incorporated into the Town’s strategic documents and budgeting 
processes. 

 Town staff are aware that implementing the DAIP is a shared responsibility across the 
organisation. 

 Town policies and procedures continue to be updated incorporating disability access and 
inclusion where appropriate. 
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9.2 Competition Policy 

Competitive Neutrality 

Competitive neutrality principles apply to the significant business activities conducted by (or 

under the control of) one or more local governments, whether they are operating jointly or 

solely. Local Government is only required to implement competitive neutrality principles, to the 

extent that the benefits to be realised from implementation outweigh the costs in respect of 

individual business activities exceeding $200,000 annual income.  

In the 2016/17 financial year the Town had no commercial activity that generated income in 

excess of the $200,000 benchmark. 

Structural Reform of Public Monopolies 

The Town of Mosman Park is not classified as a natural monopoly, nor does it conduct any 

business activities that could be classed as public monopolies.  

Legislative Review 

In accordance with the National Competition Policy, Governments were required to finalise a 

review and amend, if required, all Local Laws. This was to ensure that there was no anti-

competitive local legislation.  The Town of Mosman Park has reviewed all its Local Laws in 

relation to their potential direct or indirect effect on competition. The Town has therefore 

fulfilled its obligations.  

All new Local Laws and amendments to existing Local Laws since the review have been assessed 

under the National Competitive Policy Principles. 

9.3 Complaints 

The Local Government is required to disclose details of entries made under section 5.121 of the 

Local Government Act 1995 in the register of complaints. No complaints were registered in the 

2016/17 financial year. 
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9.4 Record Keeping 

The Town’s ongoing commitment to record keeping in compliance with legislative requirements, 

facilitates a structured approach to record keeping through the use of a corporate Electronic 

Document Records Management System (EDRMS). 

Freedom of Information 

The Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1992 allows the public the right to apply for access to 

information held by the Town of Mosman Park. While encouraged by the FOI Commissioners 

Office to process requests for information outside of the Act, it is not always possible, and in 

those circumstances, the Town would consider using the FOI process. Details of FOI, including an 

FOI statement, application form and a link to the FOI Office are available on the Town’s website.  

The FOI statement is updated annually. During 2016/17 the Town received 7 FOI applications. 

All applications were completed well within the legislative timeframe of 45 days with an average 

of 35 days. 

Record Keeping Plan 

The Town’s approved Record Keeping Plan details the process for management and disposal of 

records in compliance with the State Records Act 2000. The Record Keeping Plan is reviewed 

and updated every five years and was renewed in 2016. 

The Town focuses on retaining corporate documents in an Electronic Documents Records 

Management System (EDRMS) and delivers the best practice in record keeping, while improving 

efficiencies in processing to meet the needs of our customers and staff. 

The number of documents captured in the EDRMS in 2016/17 was 20,337; in 2015/16 was 

16,573; in 2014/15 was 16,384; and in 2013/14 was 15,208 documents.   

There were 509 new files created in 2016/2017, compared with 192 in 2015/16, 140 in 2014/15 

and 95 in 2013/14. 

Record Keeping Training Program 

In compliance with the State Records Act 2000, all employees are required to undertake training 

in the Town’s EDRMS. 

A Records Management Induction Program, which includes hands-on training sessions on the 

Town’s EDRMS was provided to all new employees with follow up training conducted as 

required.  
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Throughout the year various training programs are conducted, and in addition, electronic 

procedures are distributed throughout the Town frequently.  Records management inductions 

with follow up sessions for new or current staff were held, totalling 21 sessions during 2016/17. 

9.5 Remuneration Report  

Set out below in bands of $10,000, are the number of employees of the Town entitled to an 

annual salary of $100,000 or more, reported as required by the Local Government Act 1995. 

Salary Range 2016/17 

$100,000 - $109,999 2 

$120,000 - $129,000 3 

$180,000 - $189,999 1 
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10 TOWN MAP 
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11 FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

Town of Mosman Park Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY NATURE OR TYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016

$ Budget $

$

Revenue

Rates 22 8,546,629 8,542,183 8,304,394

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 29 556,109 462,173 536,055

Fees and charges 28 2,209,738 2,086,050 2,104,909

Interest earnings 2(a) 267,205 264,868 253,220

Other revenue 2(a) 124,073 21,000 22,400

11,703,754 11,376,274 11,220,978

Expenses

Employee costs (4,243,160) (4,009,254) (3,991,648)

Materials and contracts (4,648,502) (5,509,267) (4,837,707)

Utility charges (260,057) (320,379) (304,840)

Depreciation on non-current assets 2(a) (1,476,858) (1,180,476) (1,248,663)

Interest expenses 2(a) (449,650) (448,461) (462,349)

Insurance expenses (258,298) (260,261) (262,382)

Other expenditure (230,354) 0 0

(11,566,879) (11,728,098) (11,107,589)

136,875 (351,824) 113,389

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 29 70,823 37,410 272,823

Profit on asset disposals 20 42,196 41,976 55,719

(Loss) on asset disposals 20 0 (3,477) (8,157)

Fair value adjustments to financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss 4 (8,527) 0 19,388

Net result 241,367 (275,915) 453,162

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 12 1,562,137 0 18,601,413

Total other comprehensive income 1,562,137 0 18,601,413

Total comprehensive income 1,803,504 (275,915) 19,054,575

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016
$ Budget $

$
Revenue 2(a) 
Governance 78,988 52,300 108,811
General purpose funding 9,255,915 9,115,838 8,716,562
Law, order, public safety 42,984 25,150 29,830
Health 21,529 17,000 17,538
Education and welfare 35,207 27,900 37,676
Community amenities 1,808,939 1,797,358 1,883,759
Recreation and culture 149,693 139,288 222,680
Transport 105,405 58,740 47,539
Economic services 159,483 136,900 149,477
Other property and services 45,611 5,800 7,106

11,703,754 11,376,274 11,220,978
Expenses 2(a) 
Governance (964,732) (1,065,171) (1,029,492)
General purpose funding (264,850) (267,822) (211,446)
Law, order, public safety (255,648) (183,890) (172,048)
Health (107,276) (131,020) (77,962)
Education and welfare (175,420) (220,078) (192,093)
Community amenities (2,274,471) (2,495,098) (2,377,819)
Recreation and culture (4,003,709) (3,773,077) (3,724,438)
Transport (2,684,781) (2,670,633) (2,423,633)
Economic services (369,663) (439,700) (432,935)
Other property and services (16,679) (33,148) (3,374)

(11,117,229) (11,279,637) (10,645,240)
Finance costs 2(a) 
General purpose funding (16) 0 0
Recreation and culture (442,238) (441,082) (454,714)
Transport (7,396) (7,379) (7,635)

(449,650) (448,461) (462,349)
136,875 (351,824) 113,389

Non-operating grants, subsidies and  
 contributions 29 70,823 37,410 272,823
Profit on disposal of assets 20 42,196 41,976 55,719
(Loss) on disposal of assets 20 0 (3,477) (8,157)
Fair value adjustments to financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss 4 (8,527) 0 19,388
Net result 241,367 (275,915) 453,162

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 12 1,562,137 0 18,601,413
Total other comprehensive income 1,562,137 0 18,601,413

Total comprehensive income 1,803,504 (275,915) 19,054,575

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2016

$ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,564,626 4,038,136

Financial assets 4 1,076,743 1,103,536

Trade and other receivables 5 516,102 481,163

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,157,471 5,622,835

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables 5 162,974 171,176

Financial assets 4A 61,904 63,263

Property, plant and equipment 6 29,892,918 28,390,676

Infrastructure 7 39,291,934 39,737,711

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 69,409,730 68,362,826

TOTAL ASSETS 75,567,201 73,985,661

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8 785,609 801,102

Current portion of short term borrowings 9 22,837 0

Current portion of long term borrowings 9A 222,346 208,951

Provisions 10 459,050 487,932

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,489,842 1,497,985

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term borrowings 9A 5,904,524 6,126,870

Provisions 10 86,806 78,281

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,991,330 6,205,151

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,481,172 7,703,136

NET ASSETS 68,086,029 66,282,525

EQUITY

Retained surplus 13,447,288 13,499,157

Reserves - cash backed 11 2,368,165 2,074,929

Revaluation surplus 12 52,270,576 50,708,439

TOTAL EQUITY 68,086,029 66,282,525

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

RESERVES

RETAINED CASH/INVESTMENT REVALUATION TOTAL

NOTE SURPLUS BACKED SURPLUS EQUITY

$ $ $ $

Balance as at 1 July 2015 13,699,748 1,446,130 32,082,072 47,227,950

Comprehensive income

  Net result 453,162 0 0 453,162

Transfer to Revaluation Surplus 13 (24,954) 0 24,954 0

  Changes on revaluation of assets 12 0 0 18,601,413 18,601,413

Total comprehensive income 428,208 0 18,626,367 19,054,575

Transfers from/(to) reserves (628,799) 628,799 0 0

Balance as at 30 June 2016 13,499,157 2,074,929 50,708,439 66,282,525

Comprehensive income

  Net result 241,367 0 0 241,367

  Changes on revaluation of assets 12 0 0 1,562,137 1,562,137

Total comprehensive income 241,367 0 1,562,137 1,803,504

Transfers from/(to) reserves (293,236) 293,236 0 0

Balance as at 30 June 2017 13,447,288 2,368,165 52,270,576 68,086,029

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016

Actual Budget Actual

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ $ $

Receipts

Rates 8,492,392 8,747,547 8,187,297

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 615,470 451,231 600,740

Fees and charges 2,224,963 2,196,175 2,178,607

Interest earnings 267,205 264,868 253,220

Goods and services tax 552,269 0 434,989

Other revenue 124,073 0 0

12,276,372 11,659,821 11,654,853

Payments

Employee costs (4,133,593) (3,916,593) (4,091,051)

Materials and contracts (4,796,805) (5,409,380) (5,269,453)

Utility charges (260,057) (320,379) (304,840)

Interest expenses (448,477) (448,461) (462,349)

Insurance expenses (258,298) (260,261) (262,382)

Goods and services tax (612,293) 0 0

Other expenditure (230,354) 0 0

(10,739,877) (10,355,074) (10,390,075)

Net cash provided by (used in)

 operating activities 13(b) 1,536,495 1,304,747 1,264,778

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for purchase of 

  property, plant & equipment (621,757) (1,214,800) (328,703)

Payments for construction of

  infrastructure (413,417) (1,084,180) (278,419)

Non-operating grants,

 subsidies and contributions 70,823 37,410 272,823

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 125,809 271,500 93,291

Net cash provided by (used in)

  investment activities (838,542) (1,990,070) (241,008)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of debentures (208,951) (208,950) (196,386)

Proceeds from self supporting loans 14,651 14,651 13,996

Net cash provided by (used In)

  financing activities (194,300) (194,299) (182,390)

Net increase (decrease) in cash held  503,653 (879,622) 841,380

Cash at beginning of year 4,038,136 4,038,136 3,196,756

Cash and cash equivalents

 at the end of the year 13(a) 4,541,789 3,158,514 4,038,136

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
RATE SETTING STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2017 2016
NOTE Actual Budget Actual

$ $ $

Net current assets at start of financial year - surplus/(deficit) 1,140,685 1,197,544 838,321

1,140,685 1,197,544 838,321

Governance 80,182 53,000 108,811

General purpose funding 709,286 573,655 412,168

Law, order, public safety 42,984 25,150 29,830

Health 21,529 17,000 17,538

Education and welfare 35,207 27,900 37,676

Community amenities 1,808,939 1,799,358 1,907,722

Recreation and culture 154,577 146,303 244,939

Transport 141,523 91,001 80,999

Economic services 159,483 136,900 149,477

Other property and services 45,611 5,800 7,106

3,199,321 2,876,067 2,996,266

Governance (966,091) (1,065,171) (1,042,224)

General purpose funding    (264,866) (267,822) (211,446)

Law, order, public safety (255,648) (184,290) (172,048)

Health (107,276) (131,020) (77,962)

Education and welfare (175,420) (220,078) (192,093)

Community amenities (2,281,639) (2,495,098) (2,377,819)

Recreation and culture (4,445,947) (4,216,668) (4,179,152)

Transport (2,692,177) (2,678,580) (2,431,268)

Economic services (369,663) (439,700) (432,935)

Other property and services (16,679) (33,148) (3,374)
(11,575,406) (11,731,575) (11,120,321)

Operating activities excluded from budget

(Profit) on disposal of assets 20 (42,196) (41,976) (55,719)

Loss on disposal of assets 20 0 3,477 8,157

Movement in financial assets Write Back 8,527 0 (19,388)

Rounding 0 0 4

Movement in deferred pensioner rates (non-current) (7,135) 0 (12,323)

Movement in employee benefit provisions (non-current) 8,525 0 4,828

Depreciation and amortisation on assets 2(a) 1,476,858 1,180,476 1,248,663

Amount attributable to operating activities (5,790,821) (6,515,987) (6,111,512)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 70,823 37,410 272,823
Proceeds from disposal of assets 20 125,809 271,500 93,291

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6(b) (621,757) (1,214,800) (328,703)

Purchase and construction of infrastructure 7(b) (413,417) (1,084,180) (278,419)

Amount attributable to investing activities (838,542) (1,990,070) (241,008)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of debentures 21(a) (208,951) (208,950) (196,386)

Proceeds from self supporting loans 14,651 14,651 13,996

Transfers to reserves (restricted assets) 11 (1,006,152) (1,006,204) (946,712)

Transfers from reserves (restricted assets) 11 712,916 1,164,377 317,913

Amount attributable to financing activities (487,536) (36,126) (811,189)

Surplus(deficiency) before general rates (7,116,899) (8,542,183) (7,163,709)

Total amount raised from general rates 22 8,546,629 8,542,183 8,304,394

Net current assets at June 30 c/fwd - surplus/(deficit) 23 1,429,730 0 1,140,685

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Revenue from operating activities (excluding rates)

Expenditure from operating activities
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report comprises general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments and not-for-profit 

entities), Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian

Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations. Material 

accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented

below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

Except for cash flow and rate setting information, the report has been prepared on the accrual basis  

and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected 

non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

All figures in the financial report are presented in Australian dollars.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and  

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors  

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making  

the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other  

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

All Funds through which the Town controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the

financial statements forming part of this financial report.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and balances 

between those Funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have been eliminated.

All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial statements. A separate statement of

those monies appears at Note 19 to these financial statements.

(a) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 

GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 

recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with receivables or payables in the 

statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or 

financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating

cash flows.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits available on demand with 

banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are reported as short term borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial  

position.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges 

and other amounts due from third parties for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course 

of business.

Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified 

as current assets.  All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be 

uncollectible are written off when identified.  An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is 

objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

(d) Inventories

General

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated  

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for sale

Land held for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes 

the cost of acquisition, development, borrowing costs and holding costs until completion of development.

Finance costs and holding charges incurred after development is completed are expensed.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at the time of signing an unconditional contract of sale if  

significant risks and rewards, and effective control over the land, are passed on to the buyer at this point.

Land held for sale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on the Council’s

intentions to release for sale. 

(e) Fixed Assets

Each class of fixed assets within either property, plant and equipment or infrastructure, is carried at cost 

or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any  accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Mandatory requirement to revalue non-current assets

Effective from 1 July 2012, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations were amended and 

the measurement of non-current assets at Fair Value became mandatory.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Town commenced the process of adopting Fair Value

 in accordance with the Regulations.

Whilst the amendments initially allowed for a phasing in of fair value in relation to fixed assets over three

years, as at 30 June 2015 all non-current assets were carried at Fair Value in accordance with the

the requirements.

Thereafter, each asset class must be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework established and

Relevant disclosures, in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, have been 

made in the financial report as necessary.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

the Town revalues its asset classes in accordance with this mandatory timetable.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Land under control

In accordance with Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 16(a)(ii), the Town was required

to include as an asset (by 30 June 2013), Crown Land operated by the local government as a golf course,

showground, racecourse or other sporting or recreational facility of State or Regional significance.

Upon initial recognition, these assets were recorded at cost in accordance with AASB 116. They were 

then classified as Land and revalued along with other land in accordance with the other policies detailed 

in this Note.

Initial recognition and measurement between mandatory revaluation dates

All assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently revalued in accordance with the mandatory 

measurement framework detailed above.  

In relation to this initial measurement, cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as 

consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 

consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of non-current assets

constructed by the Town includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the

project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Individual assets acquired between initial recognition and the next revaluation of the asset class in 

accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed above, are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation as management believes this approximates fair value. They will be subject to

subsequent revaluation at the next anniversary date in accordance with the mandatory measurement 

framework detailed above.

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation surplus 

in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised against revaluation 

surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.

Land under roads

In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown Land, the responsibility for managing which, is 

vested in the local government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any value for land under roads acquired 

on or before 30 June 2008.  This accords with the treatment available in Australian Accounting 

Standard AASB 1051 Land Under Roads and the fact Local Government (Financial Management) 

Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibits local governments from recognising such land as an asset.

In respect of land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as detailed above, Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibits local governments from recognising such land

as an asset.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of AASB 1051, Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an inconsistency, the Local 

Government (Financial Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is not included as an asset of the 

Town.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings but excluding freehold land, are  

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life from the time the asset is held

ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period

of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of  

the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

a) Restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying 

     amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount; or

b) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued 

     amount of the asset.

Major depreciation periods used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Buildings Remaining Useful Life

Office Furniture and Equipment 1 to 10 years

Plant and Equipment

    Cars and Utilities 1 to 5 years

    Heavy Plant 4 to 7 years

    All others 1 to 5 years

Computer Facilities 1 to 3 years

Tools & Other Equipment 1 to 5 years

Infrastructure Assets

Sealed Roads and Streets

 - formation not depreciated

 - pavement 70 to 110 years

 - seal

     - bituminous seals 20 to 30 years

     - asphalt surfaces 20 to 30 years

Footpaths 40 to 80 years

Drainage 50 to 100 years

Reserve Development 5 to 25 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each  

reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with  the carrying amount.  

These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which

they arise.  

Capitalisation Threshold

Expenditure on items of equipment under $2,000 and buildings or infrastructure under $5,000 is not

capitalised. Rather, it is recorded on an asset inventory listing.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

When performing a revaluation, the Town uses a mix of both independent and management valuations

using the following as a guide:

Fair Value is the price that the Town would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay to transfer a

liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market 

participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is 

used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the 

characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets that are not traded in an active 

market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to 

the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or

liability (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the 

absence of such a market,  the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the

reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset after taking into 

account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant’s ability 

to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the 

asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which 

categorises fair value measurement into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an 

input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1

Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2

Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the  

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3

Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one 

or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of 

observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset  

or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market  

data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques

The Town selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends   

on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected

by the Town are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

Market approach

Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for 

identical or similar assets or liabilities.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Income approach

Valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single 

discounted present value.

Cost approach

Valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity. 

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use  

when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation 

technique, the Town gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and 

minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly 

available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would

generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which 

market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such 

assumptions are considered unobservable.

As detailed above, the mandatory measurement framework imposed by the Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulations requires, as a minimum, all assets carried at a revalued amount to  

be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework.

(g) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Town becomes a party to the

contractual provisions to the instrument.  For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the 

Town commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is

adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 

instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss', in which case transaction costs are 

expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method, or at cost.

Amortised cost is calculated as:

a)  the amount in which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;

b)  less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment; and

c)  plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount 

     initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest rate method. 

     

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant  

period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts  

(including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when   

this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will 

necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or 

expense in profit or loss. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are held for trading for the 

purpose of short-term profit taking. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes   

in carrying amount being included in profit or loss. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are 

recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets where they are expected to mature within 12 months  

after the end of the reporting period.  

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturities and fixed or 

determinable payments that the Town has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They

are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Held-to-maturity investments are included in current assets, where they are expected to mature 

within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other investments are classified as non-

current.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable to be 

classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such 

by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a 

fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in such fair value (i.e. gains or losses) 

recognised in other comprehensive income (except for impairment losses). When the financial asset 

is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are included in current assets, where they are expected to be sold 

within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other available-for-sale financial assets are  

classified as non-current.

(v) Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as

a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having occurred, which will have an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market value of  

the instrument is considered a loss event. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss immediately. 

Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified to profit or loss at this point.

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the 

debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in  

interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial  

reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance 

account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After 

having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount 

cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance 

account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount  

was previously recognised in the allowance account.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the

asset is transferred to another party whereby the Town no longer has any significant continual

involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.  

Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to  

another party and the fair value of the consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or 

liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Town's assets, other than inventories,

are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in 

use, to the asset's carrying amount.

Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in  

profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard 

(e.g. AASB 116) whereby any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease in  

accordance with that other Standard.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is

represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

(i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Town prior to the

end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Town becomes obliged to make future

payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured, are 

recognised as a current liability and are normally paid within 30 days of recognition.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Town’s obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee

benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 

12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service,   

including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the 

(undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The Town’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and personal leave are

recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position. The 

Town’s obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as

provisions in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be  

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees  

render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the  

expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated 

future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates   

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that 

have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in 

assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the 

periods in which the changes occur.

The Town’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its 

statement of financial position, except where the Town does not have an unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are 

presented as current provisions.

(k) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly attributable 

to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.  Where this is the case, they are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready 

for its intended use or sale.

(l) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Town has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can 

be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the  

end of the reporting period.

(m) Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the 

asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred to the Town, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the lower amounts equal to the fair 

value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any

guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability

and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or 

the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the

lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line

basis over the life of the lease term.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Town has significant influence. Significant influence is the 

power to participate in the financial operating policy decisions of that entity but is not control or joint 

control of those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for in the financial statements by 

applying the equity method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially recognised at cost and  

adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Town’s share of net assets of the associate.

In addition, the Town’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is included in the Town’s profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the investment includes, where applicable, goodwill relating to the associate. 

Any discount on acquisition, whereby the Town’s share of the net fair value of the associate exceeds

the cost of investment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired. 

Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Town and the associate are eliminated to

the extent of the Town’s interest in the associate.

When the Town’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the

Town discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the associate subsequently makes  

profits, the Town will resume recognising its share of those profits once its share of the profits equals

the share of the losses not recognised.

(o) Interests in Joint Arrangements
Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing of control between parties in a business 

venture where unanimous decisions about relevant activities are required.

Separate joint venture entities providing joint venturers with an interest to net assets are classified as a 

joint venture and accounted for using the equity method. Refer to note 1(n) for a description of the equity  

method of accounting.

Joint venture operations represent arrangements whereby joint operators maintain direct interests in  

each asset and exposure to each liability of the arrangement. The Town’s interests in the assets,

liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations are included in the respective line items of the 

financial statements. Information about the joint ventures is set out in Note 16.

(p) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the local government 

obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions.

Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where 

earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition 

that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were 

undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts pertaining to those undischarged 

conditions are disclosed in Note 2(c) . That note also discloses the amount of contributions recognised

as revenues in a previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the local government's 

operations for the current reporting period.

(q) Superannuation

The Town contributes to a number of Superannuation Funds on behalf of employees. All funds to

which the Town contributes are defined contribution plans.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the  

time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled.  The asset or liability is classified as current if  

it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Town’s operational cycle. In the case

of liabilities where the Town does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months,

such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be settled  

within the next 12 months.  Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be  

realised in the next 12 months except for land held for sale where it is held as non-current based on the  

Town’s intentions to release for sale.

(s) Rounding Off Figures

All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the 

nearest dollar.

(t) Comparative Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the  

current financial year.

When the Town applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement or 

reclassifies items in its financial statement, an additional (third) statement of financial position as at the

beginning of the preceding period in addition to the minimum comparative financial statements is

presented.

(u) Budget Comparative Figures

Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in this annual financial report relate to the 

original budget estimate for the relevant item of disclosure.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations for Application in Future Periods

Management's assessment of the new and amended pronouncements that are relevant to the Town, applicable to future reporting periods and which have not yet

been adopted are set out as follows:

Title Issued / Compiled Applicable (1)
Impact

(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments December 2014 1 January 2018 Nil – The objective of this Standard is to improve and simplify the

(incorporating AASB 2014-7 and approach for classification and measurement of financial assets

AASB 2014-8) compared with the requirements of AASB 139.  Given the nature of the

financial assets of the Town, it is not anticipated the Standard will have

any material effect.

(ii) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with December 2014 1 January 2018 This Standard establishes principles for entities to apply to report useful

Customers information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount,

timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with

a customer.

The effect of this Standard will depend upon the nature of future transactions

the Town has with those third parties it has dealings with. It may or may not

be significant.

(iii) AASB 16 Leases February 2016 1 January 2019 Under AASB 16 there is no longer a distinction between finance and operating

leases. Lessees will now bring to account a right-to-use asset and lease

liability onto their statement of financial position for all leases. Effectively

this means the vast majority of operating leases as defined by the current 

AASB 117 Leases which currently do not impact the statement of financial

position will be required to be capitalised on the statement of financial 

position once AASB 16 is adopted.

Currently, operating lease payments are expensed as incurred. This will 

cease and will be replaced by both depreciation and interest charges. Based 

on the current number of operating leases held by the Town, the impact is not

expected to be significant.

Notes:
(1)

 Applicable to reporting periods commencing on or after the given date.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations for Application in Future Periods (Continued)

Title Issued / Compiled Applicable (1)
Impact

(iv) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities December 2016 1 January 2019 These standards are likely to have a significant impact on the income

(incorporating AASB 2016-7 and recognition for NFP's. Key areas for consideration are:

AASB 2016-8) - Assets received below fair value;

- Transfers received to acquire or construct non-financial assets;

- Grants received;

- Prepaid rates;

- Leases entered into at below market rates; and

- Volunteer services.

Whilst it is not possible to quantify the financial impact (or if it is material)

of these key areas until the details of future transactions are known, they

will all have application to the Town's operations.

Notes:
(1) Applicable to reporting periods commencing on or after the given date.

(w) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

Whilst many reflected consequential changes associate with the amendment of existing standards, the only new standard with material application

is as follows:

(i) AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian The objective of this Standard was to extend the scope of AASB 124

Accounting Standards - Extending Related Related Party Disclosures  to include not-for-profit sector entities.

Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public

Sector Entities The Standard has had a significant disclosure impact on the financial

report of the Town as both Elected Members and senior management are

[AASB 10, 124 & 1049] deemed to be Key Management Personnel and resultant disclosures in

accordance to AASB 124 have been necessary.

and which were applicable to its operations.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

During the current year, the Town adopted all of the new and revised Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which were compiled, became mandatory
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES 2017 2016

$ $

(a) Net Result

The Net result includes:

(i) Charging as an expense:

Auditors remuneration

Macri Partners

- Audit of the Annual Financial Report 0 17,280

- Other Services; Grant Acquittal Audits 855 1,100

Butler Settineri

- Audit of the Annual Financial Report 15,550 0

- Other Services; Grant Acquittal Audits 0 0

Depreciation

Buildings - Specialised 284,804 291,174

Furniture and equipment 8,570 5,501

Plant and equipment 190,389 171,644

Infrastructure - Roads 546,610 417,173

Infrastructure - Footpaths 162,429 72,753

Infrastructure - Drainage 84,919 42,118

Infrastructure - Reserves 199,137 248,300

1,476,858 1,248,663

Interest expenses (finance costs)

Debentures (refer Note 21 (a)) 449,634 462,349

Interest on overdraft 16 0

449,650 462,349

Rental charges

- Operating leases 16,205 15,542

16,205 15,542

(ii) Crediting as revenue: 

Other revenue

Reimbursements and recoveries 111,627 0

Other 12,446 22,400

124,073 22,400

2017 2017 2016

Actual Budget Actual

$ $ $

Interest earnings

- Reserve funds 58,046 58,097 43,034

- Other funds 125,141 124,771 129,081

Other interest revenue (refer note 27) 84,018 82,000 81,105

267,205 264,868 253,220
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Statement of Objective

In order to discharge its responsibilities to the community, the Town has developed a set of

operational and financial objectives. These objectives have been established both on an overall

basis, reflected by the Town’s Community Vision, and for each of its broad activities/programs.

COMMUNITY VISION

We aspire to be an inclusive, vibrant community with sustainable management of our social,

environmental (natural and built), and economic environments.

GOVERNANCE

Expenses relating to the Town's Mayor and six Councillors, statutory expenses, general

governance expenses, naturalisation ceremonies and civic functions.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING

Rates revenue and costs relating to levying of rates, general purpose grants and interest on

investments.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY

Fire prevention, animal control, public safety services, community safety,  and ranger services.

HEALTH

Health administration and inspection of food premises.

EDUCATION AND WELFARE

Family and children services, aged and disabled voluntary organisations, school/community

grants.

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Rubbish and recycling collection services, town planning and development.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Maintenance of halls, parks and reserves. Contribution towards the library and other 

cultural activities.

Town operations as disclosed in these financial statements encompass the following service

orientated activities/programs:
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2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Statement of Objective (Continued)

TRANSPORT

Construction and maintenance of roads, drainage works, footpaths. Cleaning of streets, depot and

ranger services relating to parking control and Local Laws.

ECONOMIC SERVICES

Governance of building control.

OTHER PROPERTY AND SERVICES

Includes public works overheads, plant operational costs & other items that cannot be assigned to

any of the preceding programmes.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) Conditions Over Grants/Contributions

Opening Closing Closing

Balance (1) Received (2) Expended (3) Balance (1) Received (2) Expended (3)
Balance

1/07/15 2015/16 2015/16 30/06/16 2016/17 2016/17 30/06/17

Grant/Contribution $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Recreation and culture

Dept of Sport & Recreation 

- Kidsport program
0 12,000 (8,742) 3,258 0 (3,258) 0

Dept of Planning 

- Coastwest project
0 0 0 0 19,706 0 19,706

Dept of Sport & Recreation 

- Kidsport sport for all program
0 0 0 0 6,000 (4,106) 1,894

Other property and services

Metro LG Youth Development Traineeship - 

Civil & Engineering
0 0 0 0 20,000 (7,773) 12,227

Metro LG Youth Development Traineeship - 

Horticulture
0 0 0 0 20,000 (3,898) 16,102

Total 0 12,000 (8,742) 3,258 65,706 (19,035) 49,929

Notes:

(1) - Grants/contributions recognised as revenue in a previous reporting period which were not expended at the close of the previous reporting period.

(2) - New grants/contributions which were recognised as revenues during the reporting period and which had not yet been fully expended in the manner specified

         by the contributor.

(3) - Grants/contributions which had been recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period or received in the current reporting period and which were

         expended in the current reporting period in the manner specified by the contributor.

25



TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016

$ $

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Unrestricted 2,146,532 1,959,949

Restricted 2,418,094 2,078,187

4,564,626 4,038,136

The following restrictions have been imposed by

regulations or other externally imposed requirements:

Plant Reserve 11 388,052 416,509

Computer Reserve 11 61,433 57,819

Sewerage Infill Reserve 11 35,132 24,450

Infrastructure Reserve 11 1,319,057 1,037,122

Sporting Courts Resurfacing Reserve 11 26,653 40,159

Insurance Reserve 11 64,946 63,183

Public Art Reserve 11 40,949 39,838

Legal Contingency Reserve 11 74,950 24,273

Mt Lyell Containment Cell Reserve 11 356,993 371,576

Unspent grants 2(c) 49,929 3,258

2,418,094 2,078,187

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Current

Investment in jointly controlled entity - WMRC 1,076,743 1,103,536

Investment in jointly controlled entity - WMRC

The Western Metropolitan Regional Council (WMRC) was formally constituted in September 1989

to undertake waste management in the Western Suburbs on behalf of the following Local

Governments:

Town of Cottesloe Shire of Peppermint Grove

Town of Claremont City of Subiaco

Town of Mosman Park
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016

$ $

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Current (Continued)

Investment in jointly controlled entity - WMRC (Continued)

The Town's interest in the joint venture calculated by the WMRC as at 30 June 2017 is 18.41%

representing its share of the net assets of 1,076,743$        

The Town's interest in the assets and liabilities of WMRC is

as follows: 2017 2016

(Audited) (Audited)

$ $

Interest in the Joint Venture as at 30 June 1,076,743     1,103,536     

Represented by share of Joint Venture entity's financial position:

Current Assets 734,002         729,473         

Non - Current Assets 451,298         518,867         

Total Assets 1,185,300     1,248,340     

Current Liabilities 105,797         138,788         

Non - Current Liabilities 2,760             6,016             

Total Liabilities 108,557         144,804         

Net Assets 1,076,743     1,103,536     

Change in Equity

Share of Profit/(Loss) (7,169)            23,963           

Share of Other Comprehensive Income (19,625)          31,301           

Total Joint Venture Change in Equity (26,794)          55,264           
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016

$ $

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Non-current

Interest in Local Government House Trust 61,904 63,263

61,904 63,263

Interest In WALGA Local Government House Trust

This note discloses the equity the Town has in the Local Government House Trust as a

consequence of a contribution towards the cost of purchasing Local Government House.

The total contribution by all Local Governments towards the cost of the WALGA building

was $582,000 of which the Town of Mosman Park contributed $4,000. There are 620 units

in the Local Government House Trust, 4 of which are held by the Town of Mosman Park.

Fair value movements to financial assets through profit and loss

Revaluation to income statement 

Governance (1,359) (4,575)

Community amenities (7,168) 23,963

(8,527) 19,388

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

Rates outstanding 405,355 358,253

Sundry debtors 25,915 41,140

GST receivable 60,024 0

Loans receivable - clubs/institutions 15,337 14,651

Accrued income 7,758 67,119

Prepayments 1,713 0

516,102 481,163

Non-current

Rates outstanding - pensioners 98,787 91,652

Loans receivable - clubs/institutions 64,187 79,524

162,974 171,176

Information with respect  the impairment or otherwise of the totals of rates outstanding 

and sundry debtors is as follows:

Rates outstanding 405,355 358,253

Includes:

Past due and not impaired 405,355 358,253

Impaired 0 0

Sundry debtors 25,915 41,140

Includes:

Past due and not impaired 23,788 32,741

Impaired 0 0
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

6 (a). PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings

Land - freehold land at:

 - Independent valuation 2014 - level 2 0 1,910,000

 - Independent valuation 2014 - level 3 0 87,500

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 3 3,870,000 0

3,870,000 1,997,500

Land - vested in and under the control of Council at:

 - Independent valuation 2014 - level 3 0 1,350,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 3 5,000,000 0

5,000,000 1,350,000

8,870,000 3,347,500

Buildings - Specialised at:

 - Independent valuation 2015 - level 3 0 28,561,308

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 3 36,234,321 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 319,350

Less: accumulated depreciation (15,979,784) (4,563,662)

20,254,537 24,316,996

20,254,537 24,316,996

Total land and buildings 29,124,537 27,664,496

Furniture and equipment at:

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 2 420,537 432,894

 - Additions after valuation - cost 29,812 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (414,899) (418,686)

35,450 14,208

Plant and equipment at:

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 2 1,060,889 1,371,567

 - Additions after valuation - cost 294,961 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (622,919) (659,595)

732,931 711,972

29,892,918 28,390,676

The fair value of property, plant and equipment is determined at least every three years in accordance

with the regulatory framework. Additions since the date of valuation are shown as cost, given they 

were acquired at arms length and any accumulated depreciation reflects the usage of service 

potential, it is considered the recorded written down value approximates fair value. At the end of each

intervening period the valuation is reviewed and where appropriate the fair value is updated to

reflect current market conditions. This process is considered to be in accordance with Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 17A (2) which requires property, plant and equipment to be shown

 at fair value.
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TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b) Movements in Carrying Amounts

     

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

Revaluation Revaluation

Increments/ (Losses)/

Balance (Decrements) Reversals Carrying

at the Transferred Through Impairment Amount

Beginning to to (Losses)/ Depreciation at the

of the Year Additions (Disposals) Revaluation Profit or Loss Reversals (Expense) Transfers End of Year

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Land - freehold land 1,997,500 0 0 1,872,500 0 0 0 0 3,870,000

1,350,000 0 0 3,650,000 0 0 0 0 5,000,000

Total land 3,347,500 0 0 5,522,500 0 0 0 0 8,870,000

Buildings - Specialised 24,316,996 296,984 0 (3,940,738) 0 0 (284,804) (133,901) 20,254,537

Total buildings 24,316,996 296,984 0 (3,940,738) 0 0 (284,804) (133,901) 20,254,537

Total land and buildings 27,664,496 296,984 0 1,581,762 0 0 (284,804) (133,901) 29,124,537

Furniture and equipment 14,208 29,812 0 0 0 0 (8,570) 0 35,450

Plant and equipment 711,972 294,961 (83,613) 0 0 0 (190,389) 0 732,931

Total property, plant and equipment 28,390,676 621,757 (83,613) 1,581,762 0 0 (483,763) (133,901) 29,892,918

Land - vested in and under the control 

of Council
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair Value Measurements

Asset Class Fair Value Hierarchy Valuation Technique
Basis of 

valuation

Date of last 

Valuation
Inputs used

Land and buildings

Land - freehold land 3

Improvements to land valued using 

cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Independent 

valuation
June 2017

Improvements to land using construction costs and

current condition (Level 2), residual values and 

remaining useful life assessments (Level 3) inputs

Land - vested in and under the 

control of Council
3

Improvements to land valued using 

cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Independent 

valuation
June 2017

Improvements to land using construction costs and

current condition (Level 2), residual values and 

remaining useful life assessments (Level 3) inputs

Buildings - Specialised 3

Improvements to land valued using 

cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Independent 

valuation
June 2017

Improvements to land using construction costs and 

current condition (Level 2), residual values and remaining 

useful life assessments (Level 3) inputs

Furniture and equipment

2
Market approach using recent

observable market data for similar items

Management

valuation
June 2016 Make, size, year of manufacture and condition

Plant and equipment 2
Market approach using recent

observable market data for similar items

Management

valuation
June 2016 Make, size, year of manufacture and condition

Level 3 inputs are based on assumptions with regards to future values and patterns of consumption utilising current information. If the basis of these assumptions were varied, they have the

potential to result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.

During the period there was a change in the valuation techniques used by the local government to determine the fair value of property, plant and equipment using either level 2 or level 3 inputs  

as there was new market data available which is more representative of the fair value in those circumstances.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

7 (a). INFRASTRUCTURE

Infrastructure - Roads

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 3 37,755,027 37,755,027

 - Additions after valuation - cost 159,410 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (13,720,988) (13,174,378)

24,193,449 24,580,649

Infrastructure - Footpaths

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 3 8,046,648 8,046,648

 - Additions after valuation - cost 18,882 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (2,013,294) (1,850,865)

6,052,236 6,195,783

Infrastructure - Drainage

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 3 9,788,716 9,788,716

 - Additions after valuation - cost 30,815 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (2,854,574) (2,769,655)

6,964,957 7,019,061

Infrastructure - Reserves

 - Management valuation 2016 - level 3 4,228,923 4,228,923

 - Additions after valuation - cost 204,310 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (2,485,842) (2,286,705)

1,947,391 1,942,218

Infrastructure - Other

 - At cost 136,602 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (2,701) 0

133,901 0

39,291,934 39,737,711

The fair value of infrastructure is determined at least every three years in accordance with the regulatory 

framework. Additions since the date of valuation are shown as cost. Given they were acquired at arms 

length and any accumulated depreciation reflects the usage of service potential, it is considered the 

recorded written down value approximates fair value. At the end of each intervening period the 

valuation is reviewed and, where appropriate, the fair value is updated to reflect current market 

conditions. This process is considered to be in accordance with Local Government (Financial 

Management)Regulation 17A(2) which requires infrastructure to be shown at fair value.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

7. INFRASTRUCTURE (Continued)

(b) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of infrastructure between the beginning and the end

of the current financial year.

Revaluation Revaluation

Balance Increments/ (Loss)/ Carrying

as at the (Decrements) Reversal Impairment Amount

Beginning Transferred Transferred (Losses)/ Depreciation at the End

of the Year Additions (Disposals) to to Reversals (Expense) Transfers of the Year

Revaluation Profit or Loss

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Infrastructure - Roads 24,580,649 159,410 0 0 0 0 (546,610) 0 24,193,449

Infrastructure - Footpaths 6,195,783 18,882 0 0 0 0 (162,429) 0 6,052,236

Infrastructure - Drainage 7,019,061 30,815 0 0 0 0 (84,919) 0 6,964,957

Infrastructure - Reserves 1,942,218 204,310 0 0 0 0 (199,137) 0 1,947,391

Infrastructure - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 133,901 133,901

Total infrastructure 39,737,711 413,417 0 0 0 0 (993,095) 133,901 39,291,934
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7. INFRASTRUCTURE (Continued)

(c) Fair Value Measurements

Asset Class
Fair Value 

Hierarchy
Valuation Technique Basis of valuation

Date of last 

Valuation
Inputs used

Infrastructure - Roads 3
Cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Management

valuation
June 2016

Construction costs and current condition (Level 2), 

residual values and remaining useful life 

assessments (Level 3) inputs

Infrastructure - Footpaths 3
Cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Management

valuation
June 2016

Construction costs and current condition (Level 2), 

residual values and remaining useful life 

assessments (Level 3) inputs

Infrastructure - Drainage 3
Cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Management

valuation
June 2016

Construction costs and current condition (Level 2), 

residual values and remaining useful life 

assessments (Level 3) inputs

Infrastructure - Reserves 3
Cost approach using depreciated

replacement cost

Management

valuation
June 2016

Construction costs and current condition (Level 2), 

residual values and remaining useful life 

assessments (Level 3) inputs

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Level 3 inputs are based on assumptions with regards to future values and patterns of consumption utilising current information. If the basis of these assumptions were varied , they have the potential to 

result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.

During the period there were no changes in the valuation techniques used to determine the fair value of infrastructure using level 3 inputs.

34



TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Sundry creditors 587,182 640,072

Accrued interest on debentures 1,173 0

Accrued salaries and wages 43,842 0

ATO liabilities 86,082 0

Income received in advance 23,417 23,182

Accrued expenses 43,913 137,848

785,609 801,102

9. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Current

Bank overdraft 22,837 0

22,837 0

9A. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Current

Secured by floating charge

   Debentures 222,346 208,951

222,346 208,951

Non-current

Secured by floating charge

   Debentures 5,904,524 6,126,870

5,904,524 6,126,870

Additional detail on borrowings is provided in Note 21.

10. PROVISIONS

Provision for Provision for

Annual Long Service

Leave Leave Total

$ $ $

Opening balance at 1 July 2016

Current provisions 297,125 190,807 487,932

Non-current provisions 0 78,281 78,281

297,125 269,088 566,213

Additional provision 8,651 0 8,651

Amounts used 0 (29,008) (29,008)

Balance at 30 June 2017 305,776 240,080 545,856

Comprises

Current 305,776 153,274 459,050

Non-current 0 86,806 86,806

305,776 240,080 545,856
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11. RESERVES - CASH BACKED

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016 2016

Opening 

Balance

Transfer

to

Transfer 

(from)

Closing 

Balance

Opening 

Balance

Transfer

to

Transfer 

(from)

Closing 

Balance

Opening 

Balance

Transfer

to

Transfer 

(from)

Closing 

Balance

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Plant Reserve 416,509 171,623 (200,080) 388,052 416,509 171,662 (424,000) 164,171 369,520 160,907 (113,918) 416,509

Computer Reserve 57,819 3,614 0 61,433 57,819 3,619 0 61,438 54,219 3,600 0 57,819

Sewerage Infill Reserve 24,450 10,682 0 35,132 24,450 10,685 0 35,135 9,179 15,271 0 24,450

Infrastructure Reserve 1,037,122 700,049 (418,114) 1,319,057 1,037,122 700,146 (657,117) 1,080,151 307,175 738,745 (8,798) 1,037,122

Sporting Courts Resurfacing Reserve 40,159 6,121 (19,627) 26,653 40,159 6,124 0 46,283 115,043 8,396 (83,280) 40,159

Insurance Reserve 63,183 1,763 0 64,946 63,183 1,769 0 64,952 61,372 1,811 0 63,183

Public Art Reserve 39,838 1,111 0 40,949 39,838 1,115 0 40,953 38,696 1,142 0 39,838

Legal Contingency Reserve 24,273 100,677 (50,000) 74,950 24,273 100,680 0 124,953 99,341 4,932 (80,000) 24,273

Mt Lyell Containment Cell Reserve 371,576 10,512 (25,095) 356,993 371,576 10,404 (83,260) 298,720 391,585 11,908 (31,917) 371,576

2,074,929 1,006,152 (712,916) 2,368,165 2,074,929 1,006,204 (1,164,377) 1,916,756 1,446,130 946,712 (317,913) 2,074,929

In accordance with council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which the reserves are set aside and their anticipated date of use are as follows:

Name of Reserve

Anticipated

date

of use Purpose of the reserve

Plant Reserve Ongoing For the purchase of Council's plant and equipment

Computer Reserve Ongoing To assist with capital purchases of computer equipment

Sewerage Infill Reserve Ongoing To pay for connecting Council buildings to sewer when required

Infrastructure Reserve Ongoing To assist with the construction of new infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, building, footpaths, parks)

Sporting Courts Resurfacing Reserve Ongoing To assist with the resurfacing of courts when required

Insurance Reserve Ongoing To self fund insurance claims that fall below Council's insurance excess

Public Art Reserve Ongoing To provide funding for the installation of Public Art in the town site

Legal Contingency Reserve Ongoing To fund legal expenses that are in excess of Council's annual budget

Mt Lyell Containment Cell Reserve Ongoing To fund the maintenance and monitoring of Mt Lyell Park above the containment cell.

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

All of the reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions and match the amount shown as restricted cash in Note 3 to this financial report.
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12. REVALUATION SURPLUS

2016 2016

2017 2017 2017 Total 2017 2016 Tfer From 2016 2016 Total 2016

Opening Revaluation Revaluation Movement Closing Opening Retained Revaluation Revaluation Movement Closing

Balance Increment (Decrement) on Balance Balance Earnings Increment (Decrement) on Balance

Revaluation Revaluation

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Revaluation surplus - Land 3,323,007 5,522,500 0 5,522,500 8,845,507 3,323,007 0 0 0 0 3,323,007

Revaluation surplus - Buildings 14,016,277 0 (3,940,738) (3,940,738) 10,075,539 14,016,277 0 0 0 0 14,016,277

Revaluation surplus - Plant and equipment 89,489 0 0 0 89,489 27,666 0 61,823 0 61,823 89,489

Revaluation surplus - Joint Venture - WMRC 56,255 0 (19,625) (19,625) 36,630 0 24,954 31,301 0 31,301 56,255

Revaluation surplus - Infrastructure - Roads 20,065,410 0 0 0 20,065,410 14,232,113 0 5,833,297 0 5,833,297 20,065,410

Revaluation surplus - Infrastructure - Footpaths 5,798,296 0 0 0 5,798,296 483,009 0 5,315,287 0 5,315,287 5,798,296

Revaluation surplus - Infrastructure - Drainage 6,760,630 0 0 0 6,760,630 0 0 6,760,630 0 6,760,630 6,760,630

Revaluation surplus - Infrastructure - Reserves 599,075 0 0 0 599,075 0 0 599,075 0 599,075 599,075

50,708,439 5,522,500 (3,960,363) 1,562,137 52,270,576 32,082,072 24,954 18,601,413 0 18,601,413 50,708,439

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Movements on revaluation of fixed assets are not able to be reliably attributed to a program as the assets were revalued by class as provided for by AASB 116 Aus 40.1.
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13. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash and cash equivalents,

net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the

related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2017

2017 Budget 2016

$ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents 4,564,626 3,158,514 4,038,136

Bank overdraft (22,837) 0 0

4,541,789 3,158,514 4,038,136

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By

Operating Activities to Net Result

Net result 241,367 (275,915) 453,162

Non-cash flows in Net result:

Depreciation 1,476,858 1,180,476 1,248,663

(Profit)/Loss on sale of asset (42,196) (38,499) (47,562)

(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets 8,527 0 (19,388)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables (41,388) 301,941 (174,094)

Increase/(Decrease) in payables (15,493) 81,493 176,223

Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (20,357) 92,661 (99,403)

Grants contributions for

  the development of assets (70,823) (37,410) (272,823)

Net cash from operating activities 1,536,495 1,304,747 1,264,778

2017 2016

(c) Undrawn Borrowing Facilities $ $

Credit Standby Arrangements

Bank overdraft limit 50,000 50,000

Bank overdraft at balance date (1,763) 0

Credit card limit 20,000 18,000

Credit card balance at balance date (3,938) (5,812)

Total amount of credit unused 64,299 62,188

Loan facilities

Loan facilities - current 222,346 208,951

Loan facilities - non-current 5,904,524 6,126,870

Total facilities in use at balance date 6,126,870 6,335,821

Unused loan facilities at balance date NIL NIL
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14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liabilities at the reporting date.

2017 2016

15. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS $ $

(a) Operating Lease Commitments

Payable:

- not later than one year 6,015 16,205

- later than one year but not later than five years 4,640 10,656

10,655 26,861

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments

Contracted for:

- capital expenditure projects:

     - supply and install of outdoor exercise equipment 50,000 0

     - supply and install of solar power panels to the depot and admin 20,131 0

        buildings

     - renewal works on the David Jones pavilion building 33,342 0

     - supply and install of BBQ's at recreation areas around the Town 80,923 0

Payable:

- not later than one year 184,396 0

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the accounts.
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16. JOINT VENTURE ARRANGEMENTS

Investment in jointly controlled entity

Investment in WMRC (Refer to Note 4)

Investment in jointly controlled asset

Investment in Peppermint Grove, Cottesloe, Mosman Park Library

The Town together with the Shire of Peppermint Grove and the Town of Cottesloe have a joint

venture agreement with regard to the provision of Library Services. The Town entered into the

agreement in 1975 and since then the three local governments have contributed based on

population.

The Town of Mosman Park currently contributes 48.29% towards the operating costs of the

Library and its equity share in the net assets of the Combined Library as at 30 June 2017 is

48.29%

2017 2016

$ $

Non-current assets

Land and buildings 7,295,321 6,447,656

Less: accumulated depreciation (930,268) (612,555)

6,365,053 5,835,101

17. TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

2017 2016

$ $

Governance 298,792 3,434,563

General purpose funding 511,671 454,008

Education and welfare 0 420,991

Community amenities 1,113,275 1,535,712

Recreation and culture 2,611,563 22,357,911

Transport 68,067,965 43,215,048

Other property and services 731,464 566,339

Unallocated 2,232,471 2,001,089

75,567,201 73,985,661

The only asset recognised in the Town's financial statements is the library building.  The Town's 

48.29% share of this asset is included in Property, Plant & Equipment is as follows:
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2017 2016 2015

18. FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current ratio 2.51 1.62 1.45

Asset sustainability ratio 0.62 0.49 0.77

Debt service cover ratio 3.20 2.87 (0.67)

Operating surplus ratio 0.02 0.02 (0.20)

Own source revenue coverage ratio 0.97 0.97 0.78

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Current ratio current assets minus restricted assets

current liabilities minus liabilities associated

with restricted assets

Asset sustainability ratio

Depreciation expenses

Debt service cover ratio annual operating surplus before interest and depreciation

principal and interest

Operating surplus ratio operating revenue minus operating expenses

own source operating revenue

Own source revenue coverage ratio own source operating revenue

operating expenses

Notes:

Information relating to the asset consumption ratio and the asset renewal funding ratio can be found at

Supplementary Ratio Information on Page 61 of this document.

Three of the 2017 ratios disclosed above were distorted by the early receipt of half of the allocation of 

the 2017-18 Financial Assistance Grant in June 2017.  The early payment of the grant increased operating 

revenue in 2017 by $143,707.

Three of the 2016 and 2015 ratios disclosed above were distorted by the early receipt of half of the

allocation of the 2015-16 Financial Assistance Grant on 30 June 2015. The early payment of the grant 

increased operating revenue in 2015 and decreased operating revenue in 2016 by $143,056.

If recognised in the year to which the allocation related, the calculations in the

2017, 2016 and 2015 columns above would be as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Current ratio 2.41 As above 1.35

Debt service cover ratio 2.98 3.09 (0.90)

Operating surplus ratio 0.00 0.03 (0.22)

capital renewal and replacement expenditure
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19. TRUST FUNDS

Funds held at balance date over which the Town has no control and which are not included in

the financial statements are as follows:

                                                                      
1 July 

2016

Amounts 

Received

Amounts 

Paid

30 June 

2017

$ $ ($) $

Footpath Deposits 671,924 398,718 (319,767) 750,875

Gibbon Street Tennis Courts Key Bond 410 830 (550) 690

Park Hire Bonds 2,030 2,320 (1,750) 2,600

P.O.S.  Bond 21,371 0 (21,371) 0

Subdivision Bonds 6,900 155 0 7,055

BCITF 157 98,938 (94,675) 4,420

BRB 15,065 80,706 (45,033) 50,738

Sundry Deposits 6,020 74 0 6,094

723,877 822,472

20. DISPOSALS OF ASSETS - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

The following assets were disposed of during the year.

 

Actual Actual Budget Budget

 Net Book Sale Actual Actual Net Book Sale Budget Budget

Value Proceeds Profit Loss Value Proceeds Profit Loss

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Plant and Equipment

Governance

Holden Calais (CEO) 0 0 0 0 23,650 24,000 350 0

Holden Calais (EMCS) 20,134 21,328 1,194 0 23,650 24,000 350 0

Law, order, public safety

Ford Ranger Utility (Ranger) 0 0 0 0 15,400 15,000 0 (400)

Community amenities

Ford Ranger Supercab ECO 0 0 0 0 13,000 15,000 2,000 0

Recreation and culture

Suzuki Vitara Wagon (MCD) 9,716 14,600 4,884 0 10,800 13,000 2,200 0

Subaru Impreza (PM) 0 0 0 0 14,410 15,000 590 0

Falcon Utility (Retic) 0 0 0 0 14,575 15,000 425 0

Ford Ranger Crewcab 0 0 0 0 14,509 14,000 0 (509)

Ford Ranger Crewcab 0 0 0 0 11,240 12,000 760 0

Ford Ranger Crewcab 0 0 0 0 11,200 12,000 800 0

Ford Ranger Traytop Utility 0 0 0 0 9,760 12,000 2,240 0

Ride on Mower 0 0 0 0 6,000 4,000 0 (2,000)

Transport

Subaru Forester Wagon (OE) 13,911 15,509 1,598 0 12,200 13,500 1,300 0

Hyundai I30 (CLO) 0 0 0 0 9,900 10,000 100 0

Mazda 3 Sedan 8,340 9,600 1,260 0 6,000 8,000 2,000 0

Komatsu Backhoe 19,681 40,772 21,091 0 22,920 40,000 17,080 0

Mitsubishi Fuso Canter Truck 0 0 0 0 8,219 20,000 11,781 0

Skid Steer Loader 11,831 24,000 12,169 0 5,568 5,000 0 (568)

83,613 125,809 42,196 0 233,001 271,500 41,976 (3,477)
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21. INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS

(a) Repayments - Debentures

 Principal Principal Principal Interest
New Repayments 30 June 2017 Repayments

Particulars Loans Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Recreation and culture

Loan 73 - Library 5,228,112 0 152,277 152,277 5,075,835 5,075,835 393,720 392,766

Loan 75 - Alf Adams Pavilion 311,019 0 13,708 13,708 297,311 297,311 15,584 15,535

Loan 78 - David Jones Pavilion 103,575 0 4,581 4,580 98,994 98,995 5,144 5,132

Loan 79 - Memorial Hall 394,120 0 16,233 16,233 377,887 377,887 19,987 19,850

Loan 82 - David Jones Pavilion 76,436 0 2,951 2,951 73,485 73,485 3,098 3,104

Transport

Loan 81 - Depot 128,384 0 4,550 4,550 123,834 123,834 7,396 7,379

6,241,646 0 194,300 194,299 6,047,346 6,047,347 444,929 443,766

Self Supporting Loans

Recreation and culture

Loan 74 - Swan Canoe Club 94,175 0 14,651 14,651 79,524 79,524 4,705 4,695

94,175 0 14,651 14,651 79,524 79,524 4,705 4,695

6,335,821 0 208,951 208,950 6,126,870 6,126,871 449,634 448,461

Self supporting loan financed by payments from third parties.

All other loan repayments were financed by general purpose revenue.

1 July 

2016

43



TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

21. INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b) New Debentures - 2016/17

(c) Unspent Debentures

(d) Overdraft

Council has an overdraft facility of $50,000 available with the National Australia Bank to assist with short term liquidity requirements. 

The balance of the bank overdraft at 1 July 2016 was $nil and 30 June 2017 was $22,837.

The Town did not take up any new debentures during the year ended 30 June 2017.

The Town did not have any unspent debentures as at 30 June 2017.
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22. RATING INFORMATION - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

Number Budget Budget Budget Budget

Rate in of Rateable Rate Interim Back Total Rate Interim Back Total

$ Properties Value Revenue Rates Rates Revenue Revenue Rate Rate Revenue

RATE TYPE $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Residential 0.057174 3079 132,195,949 7,558,171 27,081 1,503 7,586,755 7,558,171 24,138 0 7,582,309

Commercial 0.057174 69 6,563,381 375,255 0 0 375,255 375,255 0 0 375,255

Sub-Total 0 138,759,330 7,933,426 27,081 1,503 7,962,010 7,933,426 24,138 0 7,957,564

Minimum

$

Residential 861 679 9,316,270 584,619 0 0 584,619 584,619 0 0 584,619

Commercial 861 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total 0 9,316,270 584,619 0 0 584,619 584,619 0 0 584,619

0 148,075,600 8,518,045 27,081 1,503 8,546,629 8,518,045 24,138 0 8,542,183

0 0

8,546,629 8,542,183

0 0

0 0

Totals 8,546,629 8,542,183

Specified Area Rate (refer note 24)

Ex-gratia rates

General rate

Gross rental value valuations

Minimum payment

Gross rental value valuations

Total amount raised from general rate

Discounts/concessions (refer note 26)
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23. NET CURRENT ASSETS

2017 2017 2016

(30 June 2017

Carried Brought Carried

Forward) Forward) Forward)

$ $ $

Surplus/(Deficit) 1 July 16 brought forward 1,429,730 1,140,685 1,140,685

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted 2,146,532 1,959,949 1,959,949

Restricted 2,418,094 2,078,187 2,078,187

Investments

Interest in WMRC 1,076,743 1,103,536 1,103,536

Receivables

Rates outstanding 405,355 358,253 358,253

Sundry debtors 25,915 41,140 41,140

GST receivable 60,024 0 0

Loans receivable - clubs/institutions 15,337 14,651 14,651

Accrued income 7,758 67,119 67,119

Prepayments 1,713 0 0

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Sundry creditors (587,182) (640,072) (640,072)

Accrued interest on debentures (1,173) 0 0

Accrued salaries and wages (43,842) 0 0

ATO liabilities (86,082) 0 0

Income received in advance (23,417) (23,182) (23,182)

Accrued expenses (43,913) (137,848) (137,848)

Trade and other payables

Current portion of short term borrowings

Bank overdraft (22,837) 0 0

Current portion of long term borrowings

Secured by floating charge (222,346) (208,951) (208,951)

Provisions

Provision for annual leave (305,776) (297,125) (297,125)

Provision for long service leave (153,274) (190,807) (190,807)

Unadjusted net current assets 4,667,629 4,124,850 4,124,850

Adjustments

Less: Reserves - restricted cash (2,368,165) (2,074,929) (2,074,929)

Less: Interest in WMRC (1,076,743) (1,103,536) (1,103,536)

Less: Loans receivable - clubs/institutions (15,337) (14,651) (14,651)

Add: Secured by floating charge 222,346 208,951 208,951

Adjusted net current assets - surplus/(deficit) 1,429,730 1,140,685 1,140,685

Difference

in the 2017 audited financial report and the surplus/(deficit) carried forward position as disclosed

in the 2016 audited financial report.

Composition of net current assets

(30 June 2016

There was no difference between the surplus/(deficit) 1 July 2016 brought forward position used

(1 July 2016
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24. SPECIFIED AREA RATE - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

No specified area rates were imposed by the Town during the year ended 2017.

25. SERVICE CHARGES - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

No service charges were imposed by the Town during the year ended 2017.

26. DISCOUNTS, INCENTIVES, CONCESSIONS, & WRITE-OFFS - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

Council does not offer any discounts, incentives or concessions other than those contained in legislation.

27. INTEREST CHARGES AND INSTALMENTS - 2016/17 FINANCIAL YEAR

Instalment Instalment Unpaid Rates

Date Plan Plan Interest

Due Admin Charge Interest Rate Rate

 Instalment Options $ % %

Option One

Single full payment 30/09/2016 11.00%

Option Two

First Instalment 30/09/2016 11.00%

Second Instalment 30/11/2016 7 5.50% 11.00%

Third Instalment 31/01/2017 7 5.50% 11.00%

Fourth Instalment 31/03/2017 7 5.50% 11.00%

Budgeted

Revenue Revenue

$ $

Interest on unpaid rates 38,663 30,000

Interest on deferred pensioners 2,322 0

Interest on instalment plan 43,033 52,000

Charges on instalment plan 23,562 24,000

107,580 106,000
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2017 2016

28. FEES & CHARGES    $ $

Governance 30,974 32,886

General purpose funding 23,562 25,294

Law, order, public safety 29,919 24,216

Health 21,528 17,176

Education and welfare 16,856 16,788

Community amenities 1,808,729 1,766,217

Recreation and culture 57,290 70,909

Transport 72,265 82

Economic services 146,697 149,477

Other property and services 1,918 1,864

2,209,738 2,104,909

There were no changes during the year to the amount of the fees or charges detailed in the original

29. GRANT REVENUE

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as operating

revenues in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

2017 2016

By Nature or Type:    $ $

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions

Governance 770 75,925

General purpose funding 415,694 133,655

Law, order, public safety 13,065 3,364

Health 0 362

Education and welfare 18,352 20,888

Community amenities 210 115,741

Recreation and culture 34,005 129,512

Transport 33,140 51,366

Other property and services 40,873 5,242

556,109 536,055

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions

Recreation and culture 19,705 3,932

Transport 51,118 268,891

70,823 272,823

626,932 808,878

30. EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

The number of full-time equivalent

employees at balance date 53.9 45.6

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK
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2017

31. ELECTED MEMBERS REMUNERATION 2017 Budget 2016

$ $ $

The following fees, expenses and allowances were

paid to council members and/or the president.

Meeting Fees 120,510 120,510 121,840

Mayoral allowance 21,879 21,879 22,110

Deputy Mayor allowance 5,470 5,470 5,528

ICT allowance 24,500 24,500 24,792

172,359 172,359 174,270

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure

2017

$

The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the Town during the year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 586,717           

Post-employment benefits 58,856             

Other long-term benefits 14,505             

Termination benefits 67,501             

727,579           

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts include all salary, paid leave, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP except for 

details in respect to fees and benefits paid to elected members which may be found at Note 31.

Post-employment benefits

These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the Town's superannuation contributions

made during the year.

Other long-term benefits

These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.

Termination benefits

These amounts represent termination benefits paid to KMP (Note: may or may not be applicable in any given

year).
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related Parties

The Town's main related parties are as follows:

i.    Key management personnel

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the

activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any elected member, are considered

key management personnel.

ii.   Entities subject to significant influence by the Town

An entity that has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an

entity, but does not have control over those policies, is an entity which holds significant influence.

Significant influence may be gained by share ownership, statute or agreement.

iii.  Joint venture entities accounted for under the equity method of accounting

The Town has a 18.41% interest in Western Metropolitan Regional Council. The interest in the jointly

controlled entity is accounted for in these financial statements using the using the equity method

of accounting.

iv.  Joint venture entities accounted for under the proportionate consolidation method of accounting

The Town has a 48.29% interest in the Peppermint Grove, Cottesloe, Mosman Park Library. The

interest in the jointly controlled asset is accounted for in these financial statements by way of 

capitalisation of the assets associated with this joint venture and presentation of these assets 

under Property, Plant and Equipment.

For details of interests held in joint venture entities, refer to Note 16.

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more 

favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties: 2017

$

Associated companies/individuals:

Sale of goods and services 0

Purchase of goods and services 0

Joint venture entities:

Fair value movements in investments in joint venture entities (26,794)            

Amounts outstanding from related parties:

Trade and other receivables 0

Loans to associated entities 0

Loans to key management personnel 0

Amounts payable to related parties:

Trade and other payables 0

Loans from associated entities 0

Note: Transitional provisions contained within AASB 2015-6 do not require comparative 

related party disclosures to be presented in the period of initial application. As a consequence,

only disclosures in relation to the current year have been presented.
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33. MAJOR LAND TRANSACTIONS

The Town did not participate in any major land transactions during the 2016/2017 financial year.

34. TRADING UNDERTAKINGS AND MAJOR TRADING UNDERTAKINGS

The Town did not participate in any trading undertakings or major trading undertakings during the 2016/2017

financial year.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

foreign currency risk.

Carrying Value Fair Value

2017 2016 2017 2016

$ $ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,564,626 4,038,136 4,564,626 4,038,136

Investments 1,076,743 1,103,536 1,076,743 1,103,536

Receivables 679,076 652,339 679,076 652,339

6,320,445 5,794,011 6,320,445 5,794,011

Financial liabilities

Payables 785,609 801,102 785,609 801,102

Borrowings 6,149,707 6,335,821 7,434,917 7,778,491

6,935,316 7,136,923 8,220,526 8,579,593

Fair value is determined as follows:  

• Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables - estimated to the carrying value which

approximates net market value.

• Borrowings, held to maturity investments, estimated future cash flows discounted by the current 

market interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles.

• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, available for sale financial assets - based on 

quoted market prices at the reporting date or independent valuation.

The Town’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

The Town does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by the Council.

The Town held the following financial instruments at balance date:

interest rate risk.  The Town’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Town.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments 

The major risk associated with investments is price risk - the risk that the capital value of investments

may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific

to individual financial instruments of their issuers or factors affecting similar instruments traded in a

market.

could affect returns.

2017 2016

$ $

Impact of a 1% 
(1)

 movement in interest rates on cash

 - Equity 63,658 56,008

 - Statement of Comprehensive Income 63,658 56,008

Notes:
(1)

level of liquidity and preserving capital. The finance area manages the cash and investments portfolio 

with the assistance of independent advisers (where applicable). Council has an investment policy and 

the policy is subject to review by Council. An Investment Report is provided to Council on a monthly 

basis setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio.

obligations under a financial instrument resulting in a financial loss to the Town.

by Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 19C . Council also seeks advice from 

independent advisers (where considered necessary) before placing any cash and investments.

Sensitivity percentages based on management's expectation of future possible market movements.

Cash and investments are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates

Another risk associated with cash is credit risk – the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its 

The Town manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only investing ininvestments authorised

The Town’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Receivables

most non-rate debtors.

2017 2016

Percentage of rates and annual charges

 - Current 0.0% 0.0%

 - Overdue 100.0% 100.0%

Percentage of other receivables

 - Current 62.8% 67.7%

 - Overdue 37.2% 32.3%

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and 

risk associated with these receivables is credit risk – the risk that the debts may not be repaid. The

The profile of the Town’s credit risk at balance date was:

The Town makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on 

There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.  

encourages ratepayers to pay rates by the due date through incentives.

a secured charge over the land – that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt.  The Town is also able

to charge interest on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates, which further 

encourages payment.

monitored for acceptable collection performance.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of the Town to recover these debts as

Town manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing debt recovery policies. It also

The Town’s major receivables comprise rates and annual charges and user charges and fees. The major
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Payables

Borrowings

Due Due Due Total

within between after contractual Carrying

1 year 1 & 5 years 5 years cash flows values

$ $ $ $ $

2017

Payables 785,609 0 0 785,609 785,609

Borrowings 634,037 2,440,117 7,001,818 10,075,972 6,149,707

1,419,646 2,440,117 7,001,818 10,861,581 6,935,316

2016

Payables 801,102 0 0 801,102 801,102

Borrowings 611,200 2,444,800 7,608,335 10,664,335 6,335,821

1,412,302 2,444,800 7,608,335 11,465,437 7,136,923

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk – that is the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment obligations 

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Town’s Payables and Borrowings are set out in the Liquidity Sensitivity Table below:

as and when they fall due. The Town manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate

cash buffer.  Payment terms can be extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon if required.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Payables

Borrowings (continued)

negotiation.

The following tables set out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk:

Weighted

Average

Effective

<1 year >1<2 years >2<3 years >3<4 years >4<5 years >5 years Total Interest Rate

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ %

Year ended 30 June 2017

Borrowings

Variable rate

Bank overdraft 22,837 0 0 0 0 0 22,837 8.77%

Fixed rate

Debentures 0 0 0 0 79,524 6,047,346 6,126,870 6.51%

22,837 0 0 0 79,524 6,047,346 6,149,707

Weighted average

Effective interest rate 8.77% 4.60% 6.53%

Year ended 30 June 2016

Borrowings

Fixed rate

Debentures 0 0 0 0 0 6,335,821 6,335,821 4.89%

Weighted average

Effective interest rate 4.89%

manages this risk by borrowing long term and fixing the interest rate to the situation considered the most advantageous at the time of 

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs. The Town
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK 
 
Report on the Financial Report 
 
Opinion   
 
We have audited the financial report of the Town of Mosman Park, which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies, and the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer.  
 
In our opinion, the financial report of the Town of Mosman Park is in accordance with 
the underlying records of the Council, including: 
 

a) giving a true and fair view of the Town’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australia Accounting 
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1995 (as amended) and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (as amended). 

 
Basis for Opinion   
 
We have conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. 
 
We are independent of the Town in accordance with the auditor independence 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial report in Australia.  We have also fulfilled our ethical requirements in 
accordance with the Code. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Other Information  
 
The Councillors are responsible for the other information.  The other information 
comprises the information in the Town’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017 
but does not include the financial report and the auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
  



 

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 

  Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report 
 

Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report which gives a true and 
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australia 
Accounting Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1995 (as amended), the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (as amended) and for such 
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as 
a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australia Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We 
also: 
 

 Identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors. 

  



 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Council’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Town’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Town to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the Council  with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to page 61 of the financial report 
“Supplementary Ratio Information”, which describes certain ratio information relating to 
the financial report.  Management’s calculation of these ratios includes assumptions 
about future capital expenditure and hence falls outside our audit scope.  We do not 
therefore express an opinion on these ratios. 
However, we have reviewed the calculations as presented and in our opinion these are 
based on verifiable information and appear reasonable. 
 
Reporting on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
We did not, during the course of our audit, become aware of any instances where the 
Town did not comply with the statutory requirements of the Local Government Act 
(1995) (as amended) and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 
1996 (as amended). 
 
In accordance with the Local Government (audit) Regulations 1996, we also report that: 

 
a) Apart from the operating surplus ratio and asset sustainability ratio there are no 

material matters that in our opinion indicate significant adverse trends in the 
financial position or the financial management practices of the Town. 

  



 

 
b) The Town substantially complied with Part 6 of the Local Government Act 1995 

(as amended) and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 
1996 (as amended). 

 
c) All information and explanations required were obtained by us. 
 
d) All audit procedures were satisfactorily completed in conducting our audit. 

 
 
BUTLER SETTINERI (AUDIT) PTY LTD 

 
 
 
 
 

MARIUS VAN DER MERWE 
Director 
 
Perth 
Date:      13 November 2017   



RATIO INFORMATION

2017 2016 2015

Asset consumption ratio 0.61 1.05 0.69

Asset renewal funding ratio N/A 1.13 1.18

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Asset consumption ratio

Asset renewal funding ratio

N/A - The Town's current Long Term Financial Plan does not contain current figures to enable the

calculation of this ratio.

depreciated replacement costs of assets

current replacement cost of depreciable assets

NPV of planning capital renewal over 10 years

NPV of required capital expenditure over 10 years

TOWN OF MOSMAN PARK

SUPPLEMENTARY RATIO INFORMATION

The following information relates to those ratios which only require attestation they have been checked

and are supported by verifiable information.  It does not form part of the audited financial report.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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